
Adult Commissioning Committee 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Adult Commissioning Committee to be 
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
DATE: Wednesday, 12 February 2020

TIME: 3.00 pm

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014,’ the 
press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record this meeting. 

AGENDA

3:00PM - MEETING TO OPEN 

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 8 January 2020 (Pages 1 - 6)

4  Patient Story - 5 minutes 

3:10PM - ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

5  Adult Social Care: Managing Finance, Performance and Quality - 
Cath Gormally/Mark Albiston - 20 minutes 

(Pages 7 - 18)

6  Adult Commissioning Report - Karen Proctor - 15 minutes (Pages 19 - 30)

3:45PM - ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE 

7  Finance Report - Steve Dixon - 15 minutes (Pages 31 - 44)

8  Effective Use of Resources and Medicines Management - Harry 
Golby - 15 minutes 

(Pages 45 - 64)

9  Any Other Business 

Public Document Pack



Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 1 of 6
08 JANUARY 2020

MINUTES OF ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

08 January 2020, 
15:00-17:01Hrs

SALFORD ROOM, ST JAMES’ HOUSE, PENDLETON WAY, PENDLETON

Present:
Mr Steve Dixon (SD) Chief Accountable Officer – CCG
Mr David Flinn (DF) Neighbourhood Lead - CCG
Cllr Jane Hamilton (JaH) Executive Support for Social Care & Mental 

Health – SCC
Mr Chris Hesketh (CH) Head of Financial Management - SCC
Cllr Bill Hinds (BH) Lead Member for Finance & Support Services – 

SCC
Dr David McKelvey (DMcK) Neighbourhood Lead - CCG
Mrs Karen Proctor (KP) Director of Commissioning – CCG
Mrs Charlotte Ramsden (CR) Strategic Director – People – CCG
Dr Tom Regan (TR) Clinical Director for Commissioning - CCG
Cllr Gina Reynolds (GR) Lead Member for Adult Services, Health and 

Wellbeing – SCC – in the chair
Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT) Medical Director – CCG – co-chair

In Attendance:
Mrs S Cannon (SC) Integrated Care Programme Manager 
Ms L Fairey (LF) Service Improvement Manager - CCG
Mrs G McLauchlan (GM) Deputy Director of Public Health - SCC
Mr Harry Golby (HG) Assistant Director of Commissioning – CCG
Mrs Claire Vaughan (CV) Head of Medicines Optimisation - CCG
Mr Paul Walsh (PW) Head of Service – Integrated Commissioning – 

CCG/SCC
Ms Carol Eddleston (CAE) Senior Democratic Services Advisor - SCC

One member of the public was also in attendance.

Apologies:
Mrs Joanne Hardman (JH) Chief Finance Officer – SCC
Mr Anthony Hassall (AH) Chief Accountable Officer – CCG
Cllr Tracy Kelly (TK) Lead Member for Housing and Neighbourhoods 

- SCC

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 2 of 6
08 JANUARY 2020

Mrs Francine Thorpe (FT) Director of Quality and Innovation - CCG

1. Apologies and Declarations of Interest

a) Apologies

The above apologies were noted.

b) Declarations of Interest

GR reminded committee members of their obligation to declare any interest they may 
have on any issues arising at the meeting which might conflict with the business of 
the Integrated Commissioning organisations.

2. Minutes of the Last Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 06 November were approved as a correct record.

3. ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE

a) FINANCE REPORT

SD presented an in-year update on how the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund 
was performing in this financial year (19/20).

Colleagues in the Finance team were currently finalising month 9 data but current 
indications were that the overspend on the adults’ element appeared to have 
worsened by £400K - £500K to approximately £1.8m. SD observed that, in the 
context of a pooled budget in excess of £400m, this was a relatively small forecast 
overspend. 

As reported at the last meeting the CCG was still disputing the process in relation to 
the critical care charged for one particular individual but was satisfied that the charge 
was valid.

Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the in-year and forecast position for 
the adults’ Integrated Fund for 2019/20.

4. ITEMS FOR DECISION

a) INTEGRATED CARE: MODELS PROPOSED TO CONTINUE TRANSFORMATION 
TESTS OF CHANGE

KP and SC presented a report which provided a summary of proposals for future 
models of care, to continue integrated care transformation and maintain & further 
grow benefits. The proposals drew on the learning from the new models of care 
tested between 2016/17 and 2019/20 and funded through GM Transformation 
monies. In this period positive progress had been seen on urgent hospital activity and 
care home admissions. The proposed models would support continuation of the trend 
in mitigated growth in A&E attendances, reduction in the rate of Non-Elective 
Admissions (NEL) and admissions to residential care.

Page 2



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 3 of 6
08 JANUARY 2020

The neighbourhood model proposal centred on strength based assessment, multi-
disciplinary care planning and intervention, continuing the functions of the 
transformation project Enhanced Care Team but wrapping them around existing 
Neighbourhood Integrated Teams (district nurses and social workers). The proposal 
added therapy, pharmacy and mental health to integrated neighbourhood teams 
(INTs) and also moved an existing therapy service (Community Rehabilitation) to 
neighbourhood teams to make the best use of therapy resource. The INT would 
support and work with Primary Care to manage complex patients with multiple long-
term conditions.

The extended care model proposal was to redesign step-up and step down services, 
with some additional capacity, to deliver improved outcomes. The proposal 
maintained the specialist staff roles of the transformation service, Urgent Care team, 
but merged these with the Rapid Response Service, for an integrated Community 
Urgent Response. 

The proposal also included a new transformation test of a ‘Homesafe’ service so that 
people could be discharged home safely sooner, with improved capacity for 
reablement, rehabilitation and support for health and wellbeing.

The proposals would mean an addition of 86 staff, of which 46 were already in post 
from existing transformation schemes. It was acknowledged that estates represented 
a challenge but work was underway to assess how much physical/desk space was 
required, given that many of the district nurses and social workers would be out and 
about at any one time rather than all being back at base at the same time.

The CCG had agreed to fund non-recurrently for  two years (£3,336,624 per year), 
with the cost off-set by system savings through avoidance of hospital costs. With this 
in mind, discussions were underway to try to negotiate a contribution from SRFT. It 
was suggested that this two year period would provide sufficient time for the ongoing 
collation of evidence to inform future commissioning and contracting decisions, and 
evaluation and monitoring would continue to form part of the testing of the new 
models of care.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee agreed the proposed models for 
integrated care.

b) POSTURAL STABILITY SERVICE

GM presented the business case for the continuation of the Enhanced Postural 
Stability Service. The service was aimed at people who had recently had a first fall 
and those who had not yet fallen but were deemed to be at risk of doing so.

Salford Currently had the 6th highest rate of falls in England and the highest rate in 
Greater Manchester, equating to 3,182 admissions per 100,000 residents aged 65+, 
Around one third of all people aged 65 and over fell each year and around one half of 
people aged 80+, leading to falls related emergency admissions and fragility 
fractures which were costly for health and care services.

Page 3



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 4 of 6
08 JANUARY 2020

TR noted that under 400 referrals each year to the service was low, when compared 
with the number of falls, and wondered if there was more capacity in the service and 
whether it was ambitious enough. GM confirmed that discussions would be held with 
SCL about the size of the problem and about the desire from commissioners to get 
more people onto the course. As SCL was the council’s main leisure activity provider, 
it would also provide opportunities for discussions on how to get those people who 
had completed the course to take up other opportunities/continue to exercise.

There was an acknowledgement across the committee that not all those individuals 
referred to the postural stability course might take up the opportunity for various 
reasons, including pride.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee agreed the following:

The continuation of the Enhanced Postural Stability Service for a period of two 
years until March 2022, with a plus one year’s extension until March 2023;

To retain Salford Community Leisure (SCL) as provider on grounds of cost 
effectiveness and continuity of service;

To recurrently fund the service at current level in line with Adults’ Advisory 
Board recommendation at an annual cost of £181,600.

c) EXTRA CARE SERVICE SPECIFICATION

CR introduced this item by stating that Extra Care was an increasingly important part 
of the CCG’s and Council’s integrated care strategy and said it was clear that care 
needed to increase in order to give more individuals a level of independence as part 
of a community, rather than being placed in residential care.

PW and LF presented the new Extra Care – Care Service Specification which had 
been developed to support the procurement process for the provision of care across 
six Extra Care Schemes which had ended or were coming to an end with an agreed 
contract extension ending on 30 September 2020. The specification had been 
designed to ensure it was future proof and so could easily be transferred when new 
Extra Care schemes were built in Salford.

The six current Extra Care schemes had been developed over a number of years on 
an ad-hoc basis and the next report on the agenda outlined areas where there was 
currently no provision.

In response to a number of observations from DMcK, it was explained that many of 
the activities and links with the community were managed by the landlord(s), rather 
than the provider(s), but there were certainly opportunities for commissioners to work 
more closely with landlords on Social Value including for fostering tenants’ 
contribution to the community and trying to identify work experience/apprenticeship 
opportunities for tenants. There would also be discussions with current landlords on 
their plans for making the schemes carbon neutral.

It was agreed that reference to Asperger syndrome would be amended to Autism 
Spectrum Disorder.

Page 4



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 5 of 6
08 JANUARY 2020

GPs around the table commented on the frequent call-outs to extra care schemes in 
their areas and wondered whether more thought needed to be given to linkages with 
the integrated neighbourhood teams. It was confirmed that the schemes had space 
for therapy and clinic appointments and that communications and strong linkages 
with the neighbourhood teams were crucial.

Subject to the comments above, the Adults’ Commissioning Committee 
approved the Extra Care – Care Service Specification.

d) FINANCIAL APPRAISAL FOR ARROW STREET

PW presented a financial appraisal of the proposed Arrow Street Extra Care Scheme 
within the strategic context for the development of Extra Care in Salford. The 
appraisal identified the cost components of the provision of care services, rental 
costs and building costs and made a comparison between the cost of Extra Care and 
the cost of Residential Care.

Based on some very high level analysis and some broad assumptions, it was 
suggested that an Extra Care scheme for 80 people in the Broughton area might 
achieve an efficiency on support costs of approximately £6.5k per week or £334k per 
annum.

The co-chairs commended the high quality of the financial appraisal and the positive 
message coming from what was a robust piece of work and SD welcomed assurance 
that the financial modelling ‘stacked up’. A strategic approach was clearly now 
required in order to identify locations for the large number of additional Extra Care 
spaces required in the future.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee commended the positive message in 
the financial appraisal and determined that, on the basis of this appraisal, the 
Arrow Street Extra Care proposal was not likely to result in additional cost to 
the care budget and may secure cost saving through a managed transition of 
care pathways for people.

e) PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR ADULTS’ 
COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

CAE presented a report which sought the committee’s approval for an amendment to 
the committee’s Terms of Reference in order to reduce the risk of a meeting not 
being quorate due to the number of voting members required to be in attendance. 

The committee was reminded that, for the purposes of decision making, senior SCC 
officers were members of the ACC as ‘non-voting’ members and only elected 
members were ‘voting members’. Clearly, with apologies from only two elected 
members, a meeting could be very quickly rendered inquorate. 

The report proposed that the number of voting members required to be in attendance 
from each of SCCG and SCC be reduced from three to two and it was envisaged that 
this would reduce significantly the risk of a meeting being rendered inquorate.

Page 5



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 6 of 6
08 JANUARY 2020

The proposal would be presented to CCG Governing Body and SCC Cabinet for 
formal approval.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee recommended for approval the 
proposed amendment to its Terms of Reference to require two, rather than 
three, voting members from each of CCG and SCC to be present at a meeting, 
in order to reduce the risk of a meeting not being quorate.

5. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION

a) ADULT COMMISSIONING REPORT

KP presented an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning 
and provision relating to adult health and care. 

The report included an update on Salford Suicide prevention Strategy, Safeguarding 
Adults Week and the Intermediate Care Unit & Acute Receiving Centre.

The committee was pleased that planning permission had been granted for the 
Intermediate Care Unit (IMCU) on Stott Lane car park and the Acute Receiving 
Centre (ARC) on the Salford Royal site.

DMcK expressed concern that more could be perhaps done to encourage a modal 
shift around transport but it was acknowledged that many patients and visitors would 
still prefer to drive to the hospital rather than take different forms of public transport.

HG agreed to bring to a future meeting a summary of the ‘Green Plans’ which 
providers were currently in the process of producing.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the overview of key and 
emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health and 
care.

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

There were no items of any other business.

7. MEETING CLOSED

The meeting closed at 17:01.

Page 6



 

                                                          

Adult Commissioning Committee
PART I 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)  

12th February 2020 (Date of Meeting)

Report of: Mark Albiston (Divisional Director ASC 
assessments)

Date of Paper: 24th January 2020

Subject: Adult Social Care: Managing Finance, 
Performance and Quality 

In case of query 
Please contact:

Mark Albiston – 07863045797

Lisa Sherlock (PA) – 0161 793 2379
Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
x Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services)

Children’s and Maternity Services
Primary Care
Enabling Transformation

Purpose of Paper: Purpose of Paper:  This paper has been produced to provide high 
level information in respect of the
 

 National and local context in terms of ASC finance, budget setting and 
management, performance and quality;

 National and local challenges and pressures on ASC spend, demand and capacity;

Before setting out a range of strategic opportunities that are available to address the 
current overspend within ASC. 

This paper follows a request from the Board of Directors at Salford Royal Foundation Trust, 
via the contracts and performance meeting to set out the mechanisms that would operate 
within a Local Authority to manage ASC spend within the context of reducing budgets and 
increased demand.

Recommendation: That the Adult Commissioning Committee reviews and comments on  
the content of the report

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 

                                                          

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

It will set out strategic opportunities available to 
key stakeholders / decision makers in respect 
of providing a financially sustainable, well 
performing and high quality ASC provision 
within the context of an integrated care 
organisation. 

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

The financial sustainability of ASC expenditure 
within the locally agreed arrangements and the 
impact this has on the local NHS budget. This 
can be mitigated through system wide 
agreement on a medium term financial strategy 
and targeted work, which will consider how 
costs can be reduce through commissioning & 
procurement functions and re-provision of 
individual support plans following a 
reassessment of people’s needs and outcomes 
through further embedding of strengths based 
approaches to ASC.

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

Whilst there will be a requirement to consider 
how we reduce the level of spend on ASC 
through a variety of mechanisms.  Equality 
related risks would be addressed through 
individual reassessments of need which will 
take into account people’s needs and outcomes 
in line with the Care Act 2014.

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT 
ARE THEY AND HOW DOES THIS 
PAPER REDUCE THEM?

The main high level risk is the financial 
sustainability and resilience of current ASC 
expenditure and the paper sets out a number of 
strategic opportunities.

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

The paper has been produced by an employee 
of SRFT who is accountable for the operational 
delivery of ASC within the NHS.  It is 
acknowledged in this paper that SRFT faces 
increased financial risks associated with ASC 
spend through the current risk share 
agreement, in addition to associated benefits or 
reducing demand on Salford Royal Acute. 

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

Through market shaping the services that will 
be affected are those that are commissioned by 
ASC.  It is not currently possible to set out the 
scale of any impact on individuals employed by 
organisations in the ASC supply chain.

Page 8



 

                                                          

Footnote:

Members of Adult Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 9



  

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

X

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

X

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 
the impacts on the Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally?

X

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed) 

X Consideration of the potential impact 
on adults with care and support needs 
and their carers was considered at 
the time of producing the report in 
September 2019. 

Any impact on individuals will 
be mitigated through a 
reassessment of their needs 
and outcomes in line with the 
expectations of the Care Act 
2014 and other key statutory 
duties.  

Legal Advice Sought X

Presented to any informal groups or committees 
(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)

X

P
age 10



  

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 11



Adult Social Care: Managing Finance, Performance and Quality

1. Executive Summary

The pool budget in Salford is facing unprecedented challenges in terms of providing a 
sustainable and financially stable health and social care provision for the current and future 
residents of Salford. 

Information provided from the pool budget holder (and validated by SRFT finance) 
indicates the following current position (not reflective of finance position in 2020/2021). 

The total contribution from Salford City Council into the adult’s pooled budget is £76M 
(inclusive of grants and council tax precepts).  The total contract values are £90.7M for the 
SFRT ASC contract with an additional £1.6m for equipment and disabled facilities grants 
and a further £3.9m that was passed across for IBCF.  The total forecast spend for ASC is 
approximately £101.4M, an overspend of £6M, which has been largely mitigated by non-
recurrent support of £5.5m in 2019-20. 

The aviable evidence indicates that previous arrangements for managing spend and 
responding to the assessed needs and outcomes of adults with care and support needs 
and their carers will not help manage the current overspend, or effectively contribute to 
financial balance.

This report should be considered within the context of reports already produced and 
presented to the Salford City Council Budget Strategy Meeting, which set out the Financial 
impact on council of integrated fund / pooled budget arrangements (January 2020) and the 
Adults Integrated Care Paper (January 2020) which sets out an overview of progress, 
developments and impact of integrated health and social care in Salford for Salford 
residents.

The paper sets out

 National and local context in terms of ASC finance, budget setting and 
management, performance and quality;

 National and local challenges and pressures on ASC spend, demand and capacity;
 An enhanced understanding in the integrated arrangements of budget-setting and 

financial management of ASC spend within the rules that govern ASC spend;
 An understanding of wider strategic opportunities to enhance the quality and 

performance of ASC;
 Key strategic opportunities that will inform strategic decisions required to deliver a 

sustainable level of spend.
 

Page 12



2. Setting the Scene 

2.1 In 2018 the Local Government Association estimated that adult social care services is facing 
a £3.5 billion funding gap by 2025 to provide ongoing support on a stand still basis.

2.2 The following key messages have been taken from the National ADASS 2019 budget survey 

 There has been a 5% real term reduction in spending on adult social care since 2010/11 
(£7bn total reduction); 

 Social care and the NHS are interdependent and without a settlement for social care the 
NHS will not be able to deliver on the commitments of the long term plan.

 Adequate funding is required to meet an increasing number of people’s needs in 
effective ways. Councils are spending an increasing proportion of their total budgets on 
social care: 34% in 2010/11, rising to 38% in 2019/20. The 2019/20 figure for Salford City 
Council is 31.3%.

 86% of directors believe the National Living Wage will be the biggest driver of increases 
in unit costs for residential, nursing and home care. It will cost councils in the region of a 
further £448m; 

3. Challenges faced by Salford 

3.1 The Adult Social Care Finance Return (ASC-FR) set out that Salford received 9,730 
requests for ASC support from new clients in 2018-19, an increase of 6% on the previous 
year against a national average increase of 3.8%. The total number of new requests for ASC 
has increased by 25% from 2015-16 to 2018-19

3.2 The office for National Statistics (ONS) population projections predict that the number of 
people aged 65+ in Salford will increase from 36,096 in 2016 to 40,260 in 2025, an increase 
of 11.5%. Another major driver of cost in ASC is the prevalence of Learning Disabilities; the 
total population aged 18-64 predicted to have a learning disability in Salford is expected to 
rise from 3,956 in 2019 to 4,077 and increase of 121 or 3%.

3.3 ASC expenditure has risen year on year for a number of years and this has continued to rise 
since the point of transfer of services to SRFT in 2016-17.These costs have been met by 
recurrent and non-recurrent funding with the NHS absorbing an increased financial burden 
for ASC in Salford. 

3.4 Up to date National benchmarking information has provided the following narrative for ASC 
spend in Salford 

 Total ASC Expenditure in Salford is £515 per head of the adult population compared to 
£504 for England, £549 for the North West and £519 for Greater Manchester. On this 
measure Salford is 67th of 152 Local Authority areas and 6th of 10 in Greater 
Manchester;

 Salford NHS contributes 24% to the cost of ASC spend which is the highest level of NHS 
contribution in GM and the 2nd highest in the Country. 

Page 13



4. Managing ASC spend  

4.1 The total contribution from Salford City Council into the adult’s pooled budget is £76M 
(inclusive of grants and council tax precepts).  The total contract values are £90.7M for the 
SFRT ASC contract with an additional £1.6m for equipment and disabled facilities grants and 
a further £3.9m that was passed across for IBCF.  The total forecast spend for ASC is 
approximately £101.4M, an overspend of £6M, which has been largely mitigated by non-
recurrent support of £5.5m in 2019-20.

4.2 A series of financial controls have been implemented in the current financial year which have 
had a positive impact on stabilising ASC spend in year and highlights the potential to move 
to a position of reducing the level of overspend that currently exists. 

5. Market Management and the Supply Chain 

5.1 GM Health and Social Partnership commissioned an independent review of support systems 
that operated across the 10 GM localities when meeting peoples assessed needs and 
outcomes at the point of discharge from hospital.  The review was undertaken by the North 
of England Commissioning Support Unit who used the system balance model that was 
developed by John Bolton – Institute of Public Care. The review highlights a number of 
issues where Salford was identified as an outlier and will contribute in some way to the 
current level of overspend. These included - 

 Adults are more likely to be discharged from hospital to social care than the GM average;

 New people 65+ are significantly more likely to be discharged from hospital into 
residential care than the GM average (which also contributes to a lack of available beds 
across the system); 

 There is a lack of EMI beds in Salford which is likely to contribute to increased costs in 
other Care homes through the provision of one to one support; 

 On average people receive less home care hours than the GM average and there is also 
a known absence of night time support in the community which means people are likely 
to be admitted to 24 hour residential when they do not require it; 

 There is a disproportionate use of short stay beds for adults who are discharged from 
hospital and a number of people have no active move on plan.  This includes costs 
pressures that ASC in Salford is not statutorily required to fund;   

 The number of adults receiving Reablement based residential care with therapeutic / 
nursing support is significantly lower than the GM average, with a position that is 
deteriorating; 

Page 14



 The percentage of adults open to Mental Health Services who are open to the care 
programme approach is significantly higher than the all England average.  Whilst there 
may be legitimate complex health reasons contributing to this, there are also identified 
gaps with regards to statutory compliance with the Care Act when assessing the needs 
of adults with Social Care Needs.

5.2 In addition to this it is acknowledged that there are some additional local challenges which 
have contributed to overspend on the ASC budget.  These include - 

 A long standing protocol in place that has resulted in cohorts of adults known to Mental 
Health Services (not including S117 aftercare) who do not contribute to their social care 
package of support.  There are additional inconsistencies in how individuals are 
assessed for their financial contribution when accessing commissioned services or those 
funded through a direct payment.

 The use of assistive technology is not a prominent feature when considering how to meet 
the assessed needs and outcomes of adults with care and support needs;

 There has been a prevailing approach of reviewing packages of support as opposed to 
undertaking a full reassessment of needs and the activity has not been sufficient to 
support a reduction in overspend across ASC through re-provisioning how we meet 
assessed needs and outcomes;

 There is limited evidence of how the contractual reduction of £1.8M per annum has been 
managed through targeted Better Care Lower Cost programmes within SRFT; 

 There has been a higher than expected use of Bed and Breakfast accommodation in 
Mental Health Services funded by the ASC budget;

 SRFT have absorbed additional new burdens through demographic changes that impact 
on overspend in ASC.

6. Wider strategic Opportunities and Priorities

6.1 In considering the future provision of sustainable levels of ASC expenditure in the integrated 
care organisation the following strategic opportunities are available for the consideration of 
key stakeholders:

 Further financial analysis to understand the levels and pattern of spend across GM 
localities and benchmarked locality comparators to better understand the challenges and 
solutions available to deliver a sustainable ASC offer in Salford.

 Consider the benefits of a system wide 3 year medium term financial strategy to set out 
how ASC will reduce the current level of overspend which takes account the annual 
contract value reduction and increased cost pressures arising from demographic growth 
in Salford;

Page 15



 Consider opportunities for increasing income to support a financially stable ASC offer in 
Salford.  One example would be to review the existing arrangements for assessing client 
contributions to their own support as this forms a key income line on the ASC budget;

 Consider how commissioners (LA & CCG) can enhance collaboration with procurement 
and market management officers in SRFT to reshape the local provider market in 
response to an independent review of the provision of support in Salford;

6.2 In considering ASC beyond the limited scope of financial management there are a number of 
strategic priorities being developed and implemented by SRFT which will enhance the quality 
and efficiency of ASC.  Key strategic opportunities are included for information -

 SRFT have agreed to work with NDTI (CLS) to introduce a model of strengths based 
working. There is an increasing evidence based that this approach can also contribute to 
reducing overall spend through cost avoidance and reduction in current spend; 

 Through the ASC contracts and finance group, there has been a much increased level of 
transparency around cost and volume increases in packages of care.  This has informed 
more strategic discussions with commissioners around the current demand and areas of 
increase, which should inform the strategic direction and focus to where there are 
opportunities to invest in more cost effective care placements, such as investment in 
Extra care sheltered housing, or a movement towards domiciliary care from residential or 
nursing placements where appropriate.

 Developing and implementing an enhanced governance and assurance arrangements.  
This will help identify patterns, themes and trends including areas of risk (performance, 
quality and finance) at an individual person and team level across ASC; 

 A S75 delivery board  has been established to oversee strategic developments that will 
enhance compliance with duties set out in the Care Act 2014;

 Develop a strategy for social work that is aligned to regulatory standards set by Social 
Work England and the strategic priority workforce plans. Essential employer standards 

 Review the opportunities to embed evidence / research informed practice through 
developing working relationships with the University of Salford;

 Contribute to the review of roles and responsibilities across the local authority, integrated 
commissioning unit and Salford Care Organisation to support the functions of strategic 
commissioning, procurement, market management and market shaping;

 Support the development of a short, medium and long strategy that informs the redesign 
and configuration of procured services that sit within the supply chain.  This will take into 
account the findings of the review of Salford system balance review, current patterns of 
ASC spend and will be supported by the opportunities provided by existing contract end 
dates

Page 16



7. Recommendations

7.1 Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to review and comment on  the content of the 
report

Name: Mark Albiston 
Job Title: Divisional Director ASC (assessments)

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1

Adult Commissioning Committee

AGENDA ITEM NO 6

Item for Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)  

DATE OF MEETING 12 FEBRUARY 2020

Report of: Karen Proctor/Charlotte Ramsden

Date of Paper: February 12th 2020

Subject: Adult Commissioning Report

In case of query 
Please contact:

Judd Skelton 0161 212 5632
Harry Golby 0161 212 6161

Purpose of Paper:

This paper provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning 
and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee 
are kept abreast of developments and progress.

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



 

2

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

This paper provides an overview of a number of 
key or emerging areas of commissioning and 
provision relating to adult health and care to 
ensure Adult Commissioning Committee are 
kept abreast of developments and progress.

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

N/A

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

N/A

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH OR EXTREME 
RISKS FACING THE 
ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT ARE 
THEY AND HOW DOES THIS PAPER 
REDUCE THEM?

N/A

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

N/A

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

N/A

Footnote:

Members of – Adults’ Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 20



  

3

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

X

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

X

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how these 
will be managed) 

X

Legal Advice Sought X
Presented to any other groups or committees, 
including Partnership Groups
(Please specify in comments)

X Described in paper

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 21



4

Adult Commissioning Report

1. Executive Summary

This report provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning 
and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee 
are kept abreast of developments.

Items in this month’s report include:

 The new Salford Carers Strategy 
 Salford Carer Support specification 
 Supported Employment - Mental Health & Learning Disabilities
 Suicide Prevention training for local venues
 Social Prescribing
 Health Living Centres contracts 

 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note and discuss this overview of a number of 
key or emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care. 

2.1 Salford All Age Carers Strategy 2019 – 2024 

The new Salford Carers Strategy was approved at the Integrated Health and Care 
Commissioning Board in January 2020.  This is a joint strategy between Salford City Council 
and Salford Clinical Commissioning Group and is the first time we have produced an all age 
Carers Strategy, outlining how we intend to support young carers and adult carers. 

Salford has a shared vision for carers: a ‘carer friendly’ city that ensures that the wellbeing of 
our diverse population of carers is maximised. This strategy is a ‘call to action’ across the 
Salford partnership to grasp the opportunities and deliver the changes that will further 
enhance the lived experience of carers in Salford. The strategy has been developed through 
a steering group with broad representation of local health and social care providers, a 
number of local voluntary sector organisations and Healthwatch Salford. The strategy has 
been informed by extensive engagement work hearing the lived experience of carers across 
Salford and quotes from carers are included in the strategy so that the carer voice is heard. 

The Survey of Adult Carers Experience survey 2016 highlighted the following:

 Over 1/3 of carers in Salford said their health had been affected by their caring role
 71.8 % of Salford carers reported ‘feeling tired’ from their caring role
 Over 50% of Salford carers reported a general feeling of stress 
 Over 40 % of Salford carers felt that they were neglecting themselves
 Less than a quarter (23.4 %) of carers in Salford were in paid employment
 42% of carers had experienced financial difficulties in the previous 12 months.

Page 22



5

In line with the Greater Manchester Carers Charter, Salford’s objectives are as follows:
 Objective One: Identifying Carers
 Objective Two: Improving Health and Wellbeing  
 Objective Three: Carers as Real and Expert Partners   
 Objective Four: Right Help at the Right Time
 Objective Five: Young Carers and Young Adult Carers
 Objective Six: Carers in / into Employment 

Drawing on information from partners and input from carers, the strategy outlines priority 
areas of work, gaps in current provision and recommendations to improve support for carers 
in Salford.  The strategy outlines the key areas of work identified below that will inform the 
action plan of this strategy:

 Identification of carers – in order to reach more carers 
 Carers assessments  - to increase the number of assessments and take a strength 

based approach
 Carer’s Personal Budgets/Direct Payments – to increase choice and control of care 

service offer
 Respite and breaks – to provide a more flexible and reliable offer
 Locality based support model – to develop peer support community networks
 Better access to support groups – to ensure services are closer to people’s homes
 Young carers & young adult carers – including better support for them in schools and 

a new standard for GPs to identify young carers. 
 Professionals that are carer aware and knowledgeable of local services
 Carer’s pathway – to enable timely and appropriate access to the right professionals 
 Better access to training for carers 
 Support for carers in Secondary Care – across mental and physical health in hospital 

services
 Working carers - implement best practice outlined in the GM ‘working Carers toolkit’
 Communication strategy – to raise the profile of carers in Salford

An overarching action plan has been developed and will be overseen, to ensure outcomes 
are met, by a newly established Carers Steering Group.  The overarching action plan will be 
underpinned by an assessment of the strategic priorities, current progress, finance 
requirements and capacity to undertake the work which will help us to manage our approach 
to the range of recommendations in the strategy. Action plans developed by partners and 
other working groups will feed into the overarching action plan.

Governance of the Carers Strategy and the implementation of the action plan will be through 
the Adults Commissioning Committee where regular updates on the implementation of the 
strategy and action plan will be given.

2.2  All Age Carers Service Specification 2020 - 2026

Alongside the development of the Carers Strategy, commissioners have been reviewing the 
current Carers Service contract and service specification to respond to the requirements of 
the Strategy and in preparation for the end date of the current Carers Service contract; 
September 2020.

Page 23



6

Commissioners have worked with a range of stakeholders to develop the service 
specification, drawing upon the findings of the Strategy, the Community Impact Assessment 
and learning from the performance of the current service. The review has adopted a holistic 
approach where, in addition to the existing and bespoke commissioned provision for carers, 
the overall strategic plan for carers support has been reviewed. The wider review has had a 
steer from individuals, with lived experience, via feedback obtained during engagement 
events. This feedback has been essential in developing the Carers Service Specification 
outlining the future commissioned intentions and offer for carers in Salford. 

The Carers Service Specification is in line with the GM Carers Charter objectives (as 
outlined in 2.1) and will provide high quality information, advice and support to carers to 
continue to care and have a life outside of caring.

The Carers Service Specification will support statutory partners to deliver the statutory duties 
in respect of carers under the Care Act 2014 and Children and Families Act 2014 by 
ensuring that they are identified as early as possible, through engaging in development 
activities with organisations in Salford so that they can both identify carers they have in their 
workforce, or are providing a service to and develop carer friendly policies and practices.

The elements of the Service Specification will be the provision of support to carers in the 
following categories:

 Identification
 Carers Assessment - proportionate
 Support – Carer/Caring role
 Advice and Information
 Health - Wellbeing
 Socially Connected
 Maintain Education
 Maintain Employment/Working Carers
 Young Carers
 Parent Carers
 Vulnerable Groups
 Experts by Experience
 Training
 Right time right place
 Self-Care
 Neighbourhood/Peer Support
 Hospital Support
 Carers Advocacy
 Specific mental health service support

Page 24



7

The contract will include provider obligations associated with Social Value and added value. 
The provider will be expected to deliver Salford’s priorities and standards in relation to Social 
Value by signing up to the City Mayor’s Employment Charter and the 10% Better Campaign. 
To ensure the provider is meeting the requirements of the contract, the outcomes achieved, 
as a result of social or added value, will be monitored via regular performance monitoring. 

The Carers Service Specification was approved at the Health and Care Commissioning 
Board in January 2020. Commissioners will now proceed with a tendering exercise to 
identify a provider to deliver the requirements of the specification and contract from 1st 
October 2020. The contract will run for a duration of five years with the option to extend for a 
further 12 months.

2.3  Supported Employment - Mental Health & Learning Disabilities 

The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health (5YFV) identified the disparity between 
people with mental health issues and the general population in relation to achieving 
employment. Nationally, 43% of all people with mental health problems (predominantly 
common mental health problems) are in employment compared to 74% of the general 
population and 65% of people with other health conditions. The employment rate for people 
in secondary care mental health services is even lower at 6.7% nationally.   Salford’s All Age 
Mental Health Commissioning Strategy identifies employment, particularly for people with 
Severe and Enduring (SMI) mental health needs as a key priority.

People with learning disabilities are far less likely to be in employment than the rest of the 
population.  NHS Digital (2018) published data that confirmed only 6% of people with a 
learning disability, known to the local authority were in paid work.  This figure has been static 
for over a decade, and is in comparison to 48% of people with a disability and 75% of the 
general population.  The Greater Manchester Learning Disability Strategy identifies 
employment as one of its priorities, and this is also to be reflected in the local strategy 
currently being developed for Salford.

The Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) provides a national measure of adult 
social care targets and includes targets for supported employment in learning disabilities and 
mental health.  Salford’s mental health performance is currently 4th in GM and in line with the 
North West average but the locally set target of 10% is not currently being met at the mid 
year point with performance at 8.2%.  Salford’s learning disability performance against a 
target of 5% in 2019/20 is reported at 4.5%, below average for GM but ahead of the North 
West average. 

There are a range of approaches aiming to increase the number of people with Learning 
Disabilities and Mental Health Problems (specifically SMI) in employment in Salford. 

The Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP) Team comprises an employment specialist and an 
employment retention worker who support people with a first episode psychosis back into 
work. In 2018, oversight of the Individual Placement Support (IPS) model was extended to 
ensure a consistent approach across the wider Salford pathway. There were 59 people 
supported under the local IPS approach in 2018/19, with 38 progressing on to employment. 
The team has a strong level of fidelity to the national IPS guidance and is regularly reviewed 
as part of the EIP annual audit. 

Page 25



8

Elements of the IPS model are also provided via the Community Engagement Recovery 
Team (CERT), which comprises workers who are co-located within CMHTs to support 
people with employment, vocational, educational and volunteering opportunities. These 
workers attend regular MDTs and support people with a range of work and vocational 
opportunities. 

The emerging Living Well model is providing an opportunity to re-think our employment offer 
for people with mental health problems and employment support has been developed as an 
integral part of the Living Well multi-disciplinary team. This offer has been co-produced with 
lived experience colleagues and will sit alongside other practitioners (including peer workers, 
mental health professionals and recovery workers) to ensure that employment support is 
part of a holistic package of support to people experiencing mental health problems. 
The Skills and Work team in Salford City Council has recruited a dedicated officer to work 
with residents, employers and city partners to increase the number of Salford residents with 
Learning Disabilities and other significant disabilities who are in paid work. Their focus will 
be to increase the number of skills and employment opportunities for priority residents. They 
will encourage adults and young people to explore skills and employment as a way of 
improving their lives and they will be charged with maximising outcomes for Salford 
residents from the newly commissioned GMCA’s Specialist Employment Service (see below) 
and the newly commissioned Department for Work and Pension’s Supported Employment 
Service, by ensuring that both services are fully integrated into Salford’s public and third 
sector service offer and operate in a joined up and coordinated manner.

In addition, to the approaches described above, a number of specific services are 
commissioned to support people with mental health problems and learning disabilities which 
also include outcomes relating to employment. These include, Mental Health Recovery and 
Horticulture and Princes Park Garden Centre . 

Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) and GM Health and Social Care 
Partnership (GM HSCP) have been developing the commission of a GM Specialist 
Employment service (GMSES). This service aims to ‘top up’ existing limited specialist 
employment provision and comprises supported employment for people with learning 
disabilities and/or Autism and people with severe and enduring mental illness. GMSES has 
been out to the market to tender, and contracts awarded with delivery beginning on 1st April 
2020. This is a 3 year contract and will run until 31st March 2023 and will contribute to our 
targets of increasing employment for these groups.

2.4  Suicide Prevention training for local venues

The GM Suicide Prevention Executive has been allocated Suicide Prevention Sector-Led 
Improvement funding. Following an engagement event with the 10 localities on Monday 16th 
December 2019 the GM Suicide Prevention Executive decided to split the money across the 
10 localities to support projects that improve suicide prevention awareness.  Salford has 
been awarded £2,300.

Salford will be using the £2,300 to fund 30 people to access Applied Suicide Intervention 
Skills Training (ASIST) and 10 people to access Community ASIST. This will mean that 40 
people receive suicide prevention awareness training. 

Page 26



9

The training will be supported and provided by Mind in Salford. Mind have been able offer 
ASIST at a reduced cost to support this project which will enable more people to access the 
training offer.

The project will be linked with the Living Well Programme and the developing Listening 
Lounges. The cohort of people accessing the training will be people that work/volunteer in 
the Listening Lounges, but that are not part of the Living Well Team. This cohort of people 
has been chosen because the Listening Lounges could be in a variety of locations across 
the city, for example the Listening Lounge could be in a community space or coffee shops. 
By supporting this cohort to feel confident about having a conversation with people about 
suicide will mean that people can access help even when the Listening Lounge is not there. 
It will also benefit the wider community outside of the Living Well cohort that will also be 
accessing the venue.

Linking the project with Living Well means that the project will be developed by people with 
lived experience as they are members of the Living Well team. The team will be choosing 
the Listening Lounge locations to ensure they meet the needs of the Living Well Cohort. This 
means that they are best place identify people for the ASIST training. 

The project proposal was approved by the Salford Suicide Prevention Partnership on 
Thursday 23rd January 2020. The group agreed that the project meets the priorities of 
Salford’s Suicide Prevention Partnership. 

2.5 Social Prescribing Update

Social prescribing is when health professionals refer patients to non-clinical support in the 
community, in order to improve their health and wellbeing. The NHS Long Term Plan 
includes social prescribing as part of the recommended approach to personalised care. The 
plan commits investment to embed social prescribing into health and care systems 
throughout England and states that over 1,000 trained social prescribing link workers will be 
in place by the end of 2020/21.

When Primary Care Networks (PCNs) and the new GP contract arrangements came in place 
in July 2019, this investment was further described. There was inclusion of a roles re-
imbursement scheme for Social Prescribing Link Workers. The monies able to be 
reimbursed to PCNs, is from the national allocations provided to CCGs. It equates to five link 
workers for Salford PCNs. The specification is not prescriptive about who employs link 
workers, however they are expected to be members of the PCN team and take referrals from 
a wide range of agencies, including GP practices.. 

In Salford there are a number of social prescribing initiatives already in place. The main 
scheme is ‘Wellbeing Matters’ which is funded through the population health transformation 
programme (£1.12m). Wellbeing Matters is a two year project, running until June 2020, with 
Salford CVS as the provider. The project aims to create a new infrastructure which links 
statutory health care to VCSE provision and activities. There are three inter-connected 
workstreams: 

i. Social prescribing – connecting people to community assets / non-clinical support
ii. Capacity building the VCSE ecosystem through volunteering
iii. Embedding Social Value

Page 27



10

Through Wellbeing Matters there are five Community Connectors in Salford, who effectively 
meet the role requirements for link workers.  An interim evaluation was completed for 
Wellbeing Matters, by Salford University, in September 2019. The findings were positive with 
good examples of outcomes from the 901 referrals from primary care and the 667 ‘social 
prescriptions.’ Salford is already in a good position with national requirements around 
numbers referred and has been testing the infrastructure for social prescribing. The final 
evaluation is however not due until September 2020. 

Salford PCNs and partners have considered the approach to Social Prescribing for 2020/21 
and agreed the following steps.  

 PCNs have agreed to pool link worker funding and the CCG will supplement this to 
continue Wellbeing Matters non-recurrently in 2020/21;

 There will be minor changes to the approach from April 2020, such as referral routes 
and increased connectedness with practices and other programmes;

 A Social Prescribing Strategy will be developed during 2020;
 During 2020/21 a model will be developed for 2021/22 and costed in order to 

implement the strategy and accounting for the final evaluation findings of Wellbeing 
Matters

Adults Commissioning Committee will be kept updated on progress with the development of 
social prescribing model and strategy. 

2.6 Renewal of Healthy Living Centres Contracts

Salford CCG and City Council have together, with Salford’s Voluntary, Community & Social 
Enterprises (VCSE) sector, developed a strategy to describe the position and role of the 
VCSE sector in Salford in terms of how it supports and benefits local people, delivers 
services and influences city-wide policy and strategy. Amongst the intended outcomes is a 
consistent approach to operational and strategic thinking.

The commissioning of the Healthy Living Centres (HLCs) in Salford stretches back to at least 
2011. In recent years work has been completed to align the contracts for the three HLCs so 
they had a single end date and were commissioned to the same specification.  As part of this 
work a new outcomes framework was agreed and implemented in 2017/18.  The current 
contract end date is 31 March 2020.

The HLCs are located amongst some of Salford’s most deprived communities: The Angel 
Centre and Langworthy Cornerstone in the Ordsall and Claremont area and The Energise 
Centre in Broughton. They are a hub for what happens and develops locally, responsive to 
local need. People, groups, communities are stakeholders in how HLCs are developed and 
in influencing what they do. Users of HLC services have, therefore, predominantly been from 
the local neighbourhoods. 

The Energise HLC is part of the Big Life Group which comprises a social enterprise called 
the Big Life Company, a Multi-Academy Trust called Big Life Schools and three charities. 
Langworthy Cornerstone HLC is run by the Langworthy Cornerstone Association (LCA), a 
registered charity and company limited by guarantee.  The Angel Centre is run by Social 
AdVentures, a Community Benefit Society.

Page 28



11

The contracts for HLC’s set out the requirements to deliver health and wellbeing activities for 
the benefit of local communities. HLCs build knowledge, skills, behaviour change and 
capacity to make a difference to health and wellbeing in that area. The HLCs also provide 
other activities with funding through other grants and covering areas such as small business 
support and skills training.

HLCs act as community hubs for a number of VCSE sector organisations to provide health 
and wellbeing and also provide space for commissioned health and social care service 
provision in the community.

A few of the outcomes delivered by the three HLCs in 2018/19 include:
 169% social value add against total contract value in 2018/19 (£1,753,601 against 

£1,037557)
 1,891 people from vulnerable groups participating in HLC programmes
 1,302 people participating in physical activity programmes directly provided by the HLCs
 1,065 people participating in programmes directly provided by HLCs that aim to achieve 

a weight loss
 2,890 people participating in interventions directly provided by HLCs focusing on healthy 

eating
 739 people with a diagnosed long term condition attending HLC directly provided 

interventions / activities designed to support self-management
 1,214 smokers engaged in an intervention
 91 smokers achieved a quit
 13 volunteers went on to find paid work

The contract values for the HLCs vary significantly; this appears to largely be a historical 
variation from when each centre was commissioned individually. The contract value for each 
HLC includes a contribution to rent/estates costs; these are in effect pass-through costs with 
rents paid to NHS Property Services (NHSPS) or Community Health Partnerships (CHP). It 
is assumed that these costs would fall to the integrated fund if the buildings were not 
occupied.

The total annual value of these three contracts is £1,037,557 in 2019/20 of which £379,192 
is a contribution to rent / estates.
 
The Service and Finance Group considered a review of the three HLCs contracts on 7 
January. The group had previously received reports/papers on a number of other services 
and initiatives and concluded that a clearer, strategic approach was required as significant 
investments in the VSCE have developed in a piece meal, opportunistic manner. The group 
was supportive of continued investment In HLCs but was uncomfortable extending the 
current arrangements for a long time in the absence of that clearer, strategic approach.  The 
group therefore recommended to extend the current HLC contracts for one year (with the 
potential for a second year) in order to align with the wider VCSE Strategy development and 
implementation.

Officers are considering how to progress this recommendation through the governance of 
the integrated commissioning arrangement for formal decision(s).  

Page 29



12

3. Recommendations

Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note and discuss this overview of a number of 
key or emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care. 

Judd Skelton (Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning) & Harry Golby (Assistant 
Director of Commissioning)  

Page 30



 

                                                          

ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE (ACC) 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 7

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)  

12th February 2020

Report of: Chief Finance Officer

Date of Paper: 31st January 2020

Subject: Finance Report

In case of query 
Please contact:

Steve Dixon, Chief Accountable Officer
0161 212 6159

Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
 Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services)

Children’s and Maternity Services
Primary Care

 Enabling Transformation
Purpose of Paper:                                   

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults’ Commissioning Committee with:

• An update on the 2019/20 financial performance of the Integrated Fund for Adult 
services (Section 3)

• An update on the additional funding approved for Adult Social Care, including 
benefits realisation, latest forecast spend position and approval from the national team on 
the Better Care Fund (BCF) (Sections 4 and 5)

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



                                      
Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

X

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

X

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 
the impacts on the Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally?
Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed) 

X

Legal Advice Sought
X

Presented to any informal groups or committees 
(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)

X
Detailed financial position reported to 
the Service and Finance Group (SFG) 
on 4th February 2020.

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 32



                                      
Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC)

Finance Report – 12th February 2020

1. Executive Summary

This finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with an in-year 
update on how the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is performing in this financial 
year (2019/20).  To ensure the committee receives the very latest information, the report is 
based on month 9 financial information. It should however be noted at the time of writing, 
month 9 finances had not been fully validated. 

At month 9, the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is currently forecasting to 
overspend by £2.5m in 2019/20.  This is a worsening of £0.6m from the last finance report 
to January’s ACC, which had a forecast year end overspend of £1.9m.

Section 3 highlights the main areas of over and under performance within the adults’ 
Integrated Fund.  Adult Social Care (ASC) is forecasting to overspend by £6.1m, despite 
commissioners funding £1.5m in pressures in 2019/20. Effectively spend has increased 
year on year by £2.4m

There is a financial risk share in place in the contract between the commissioners and the 
provider whereby Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust (SRFT) will contribute £3.3m 
towards the over performance for 2019/20 and a fixed agreed amount of £2.8m is charged 
to the Integrated Fund. This financial pressure for the Integrated Fund is offset by £3.3m 
funding released from committed developments, primarily relating to the additional ASC 
grant of £1.4m and an in-year funding allocation to the CCG of £0.9m.

Section 3 reports the findings of the working group that was established to review the key 
areas of overspend in Adult Social Care (ASC), namely Learning Disabilities and 
Residential Care.  The group are now progressing reports back to the SRFT contract 
meeting and in December 2019 an update on short-term placements was received on the 
back of the residential dataset work.

Section 4 focuses on the ‘improved Better Care Fund’ (iBCF) providing an update on the 
measures that have been developed to show how the additional funding will improve 
outcomes for the population being supported. 

ACC is asked to note the in-year and forecast position for the adult’s Integrated Fund for 
2019/20.

Page 33



                                      
2. 2019/20 IN YEAR MONITORING

2.1 This latest finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with 
in-year update on how the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is performing in the 
financial year (2019/20).  The appendices contain a lot of detail and are appended to 
give members a more thorough understanding of the scope of the Integrated Fund.  
There are explanatory notes included in the appendices which hopefully explain the 
key messages contained within them.

2.2 This finance report is based on information up to the end of December 2019.  A 
detailed analysis of the position for each of the adults’ services within the Integrated 
Fund is shown in Appendices One to Six.

2.3 The Service and Finance Group (SFG) reviewed the budgets in detail at the 
meetings on the 4th February 2020.  At this stage of the year, the year-end forecast is 
an over spend of £2.9m, as shown in Table 1 below.  

Table 1: 2019/20 Financial Summary

YTD 
Budget

 YTD 
Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement 
in Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s Notes

TOTAL FUNDING £294,717 £295,092 £375 £396,269 £396,769 £500 £500 £0

Adult Social Care £70,230 £72,330 £2,100 £93,639 £96,439 £2,800 £2,800 £0 See Appendix 1
Acute Services £64,466 £65,930 £1,463 £85,955 £87,906 £1,951 £1,587 £364 See Appendix 2
Community Services £21,760 £21,582 -£178 £29,013 £28,667 -£346 -£297 -£50 See Appendix 3

TOTAL - ICO £156,456 £159,842 £3,386 £208,608 £213,013 £4,405 £4,091 £314

Acute Services £19,920 £20,410 £490 £26,560 £27,122 £562 £605 -£43
Adult Social Care £2,819 £2,819 £0 £3,758 £3,660 -£98 -£98 £0
Adult Social Care - Capital £2,313 £2,313 £0 £3,085 £3,085 £0 £0 £0
Community Assets/ Voluntary Sector £1,390 £1,389 -£1 £1,853 £1,851 -£2 -£2 £0
Community Services £1,846 £1,872 £26 £2,461 £2,477 £16 -£3 £19
Continuing Health Care & Funded Nursing Care £5,006 £4,915 -£91 £6,675 £6,624 -£51 -£110 £59
Mental Health Services - NHS £26,252 £26,242 -£11 £35,003 £34,992 -£12 £0 -£12
Mental Health Services - Private & Voluntary Sector £5,754 £5,523 -£231 £7,671 £7,445 -£227 -£214 -£13
Public Health Services £6,334 £6,334 £0 £8,445 £8,380 -£65 -£65 £0

TOTAL - Non ICO £71,634 £71,816 £183 £95,511 £95,636 £124 £114 £10 See Appendix 4

Acute Services £57,851 £59,401 £1,551 £77,134 £79,198 £2,064 £1,221 £843
Ambulance Services £7,701 £7,701 £0 £10,268 £10,286 £18 £17 £1
Community Services £41 £41 £0 £55 £55 £0 £0 £0
NHS 111 £564 £562 -£2 £752 £750 -£3 -£3 £0
Termination of Pregnancies £471 £513 £42 £628 £688 £61 £66 -£5

TOTAL - Aligned £66,628 £68,219 £1,591 £88,837 £90,978 £2,140 £1,301 £839 See Appendix 5

Committed Developments £0 £0 £0 £3,313 £33 -£3,280 -£3,130 -£150

TOTAL - Committed Developments £0 £0 £0 £3,313 £33 -£3,280 -£3,130 -£150 See Appendix 6

TOTAL EXPENDITIURE £294,717 £299,877 £5,160 £396,269 £399,659 £3,389 £2,376 £1,014

Over/(Under) Spend £0 £4,785 £4,785 £0 £2,889 £2,889 £1,876 £1,014

£'000's %
£2,283 79% £1,482 £801

£607 21% £394 £213
£2,889 100% £1,876 £1,014

Previous Riskshare

2019/20 Monitoring

Description
CCG Element of Over/(Under) Spend

Council Element of Over/(Under) Spend
Grand Total

The main reasons for the under and overspends against each of the sections are:

Page 34



                                      

2.4.1 ICO Adult Social Care (ASC) Services (Appendix 1):  These services are currently 
forecast to over spend by £6.1m in 2019/20.  There has been an improvement of 
£0.2m since the last report and relates to improvements in Residential Placements.  

This year a risk share has been agreed between commissioners and Salford Royal 
(SRFT) in relation to ASC spend only.  Under the terms of the risk share, SRFT will 
pick up over £3m of this overspend and the financial risk to the Integrated Fund is a 
fixed forecast at £2.8m which is illustrated in table 1.

This represents a £2.4m worsening of position when compared to 2018/19. More 
detail on this can be found in the appendix.  However this has been offset by the 
releasing of funds within committed developments in 2.4.6 below. 

2.4.2 ICO Acute Hospital Services (Appendix 2):  Activity information has been received 
from SRFT relating to April to December 2019.  These services are forecast to over 
perform by £1.9m on adult services in 2019/20 which is a worsening in the year end 
forecast of £0.4m compared with the last report to this committee.  The driver for this 
increase is down to planned care which is the result of waiting list initiatives 
undertaken by the trust.

2.4.3 ICO Community Services (Appendix 3):  These services are currently forecast to 
underspend by £0.3m in 2019/20.  This is in line with the last report to this committee 
further details can be found in the appendix.

2.4.4 Non ICO Services (Appendix 4):  This year there are more services within this area 
due to the expansion of the integrated fund for 2019/20.  These services are forecast 
to overspend by £0.1m in 2019/20 which is in line with the last report to this 
committee.

2.4.5 Aligned Services (Appendix 5):  These services are forecast to overspend by £1.9m 
in 2019/20 which is a worsening in the year end forecast of £0.8m compared with the 
last report to this committee.  The main driver is planned surgical care activity as 
trusts are currently reducing waiting list across all specialties where possible.  There 
has also been increased spend relating to ophthalmology at the MFT.  

2.4.6 Committed Developments (Appendix 6):  There has been a change to the share care 
records commitment, which is now no longer required for this financial year and 
therefore has been released to off-set overspends in other areas. No other changes 
have been made to the committed developments from the last report to this 
committee, further details can be found in appendix.  

Page 35



                                      
3. ADULT SOCIAL CARE (ASC) FINANCE & PERFORMANCE GROUP

3.1 The group has met a number of times with the last meeting being in January 2020.  A 
report on short-term placements was presented to the group and the contract 
meeting in December.  This highlighted a significant reduction in the amount of short-
term placements as there were 111 cases in May 2019 and this has reduced to 63 by 
the end of October 2019 a reduction of 48 cases.  A number of these cases have 
transferred to a long term placement where an assessment has deemed this 
appropriate; this has contributed to an increase in the permanent cohort of 23.

Across the permanent and short stay categories overall Nursing and Residential 
Packages are down by 25 from 1,045 to 1,020. Assuming all of this reduction in 
activity at Salford Standard rates has led to a gross saving on short stay placements 
of £287k to the end of October against the April baseline, this has been partially 
offset by increased permanent package costs of £120k; this represents a net saving 
of £166k to the end of October 2019.

3.2 The group is also in the process of establishing a dataset for Community Equipment 
Spend (CES) currently we have 2 datasets one for finances and the other for 
equipment that has been loaned out, however linking the 2 datasets together is 
proving difficult at present.  Further meetings are scheduled with the service in order 
to try and establish a historical dataset or introduce a new dataset to link the 2 
reports together for the future.

Findings from the group and recommendations will be reported back to the contract 
meeting and Service and Finance Group (SFG) in due course.

Page 36



                                      
4. BETTER CARE FUND

4.1 The submission of quarterly monitoring reports continues to be a national condition 
for the Better Care Fund (BCF) and the improved Better Care Fund (iBCF).  The 
locality has submitted our 2019/20 iBCF plan and has received the following 
feedback: “More considered and detailed. With the inclusion of the pooled budget 
you get a real sense of the vision for integration. No obvious compliance issues.” 

The 2019/20 quarter one, two and three monitoring reports have been submitted in 
accordance with submission deadlines with quarter 3 submission being only on 24th 
January 2020.

4.2 Performance information has been received up to November 2019. This was 
received within the appropriate timescales following escalation of previous timeliness 
issues at recent contract meetings. 

However, there continues to be challenges regarding the quality and completeness of 
information submitted via the monthly commissioner performance report, with 
approximately one fifth of measures containing no information in the reporting period.

Similarly, reported performance against locally defined thresholds continues to face 
significant challenges, with 30 of 59 routinely reported measures not achieving target 
in November (note: there is an element of duplication across the overall suite of 
measures which exacerbates this slightly).

Meetings are scheduled between commissioner and provider colleagues to review 
the suite of reporting requirements with the intention of rationalising them. It is 
recognised that the suite has grown since the transfer of ASC services into the ICO; 
with a significant number of additional measures recently being introduced as part of 
the Local Incentive Scheme work stream (formerly New Currency Models). 
Recommendations will be presented to ASC Commissioning Group once determined.

6. Recommendations

6.1 The Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) is asked to:

 Note the in year and forecast position of the adults’ services within the Integrated 
Fund for 2019/20.

David Warhurst
Interim Chief Financial Officer, Salford CCG
4th February 2020

Page 37



                                      
Appendix 1 – ICO Adult Social Care 2019/20

Analysis of Adult Social Care By 
Client Group

YTD 
Budget

 YTD Actual
YTD 

Variance
Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement 
in Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Learning Disabilities £22,376 £23,662 £1,286 £29,798 £31,520 £1,722 £1,366 £356
Physical Disability £16,001 £18,447 £2,446 £21,296 £24,596 £3,300 £3,224 £76
Mental Health £8,149 £8,798 £649 £10,849 £11,723 £874 £1,007 -£133
Older People £9,681 £10,532 £851 £12,890 £14,384 £1,495 £1,728 -£233
Sensory £612 £575 -£38 £815 £769 -£47 -£43 -£4
Other £9,153 £9,022 -£130 £12,316 £12,006 -£309 -£70 -£240
Care Act £2,276 £1,663 -£613 £3,033 £2,208 -£825 -£817 -£8
Support Services £1,296 £1,296 -£0 £1,728 £1,728 -£0 -£0 -£0
iBCF £683 £633 -£50 £911 £836 -£74 -£62 -£13
SRFT Contribution £2 -£2,299 -£2,301 £4 -£3,331 -£3,335 -£3,517 £182

TOTAL £70,230 £72,330 £2,100 £93,639 £96,439 £2,800 £2,817 -£17

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all of the Adult Social Care services that are managed by the ICO 
(Salford Royal) and totals £93.6m for 2019/20.  The budget for 2019/20 was set at the 
recurrent budget value for 2018/19 plus an increase of £1.5m for cost pressures in relation to 
The Limes, Bourke Gardens, Residential and Learning Difficulties Placements.  

These services are forecast to overspend by around £6.1m in 2019/20 and highlights the over 
spend is within Older People and Physical Disability (Residential Care).  There has been an 
improvement in forecast of £0.2m since the last report relating to Residential Placements.  
Last year these services overspent by £5.2m taking into account commissioners funded £1.5m 
of pressures, this represents a worsening of position of £2.4m in 2019/20.  

Commissioners have agreed to a fixed contribution of £2.8m for this year which is in line with 
the financial risk share in place between the provider and commissioners. For clarity of the 
£6.1m pressure, SRFT will pick-up £0.5m directly leaving £5.6m that will be applied against 
the risk share agreement which is set at 50/50 for 2019/20.

Page 38



Page 9 of 13

Appendix 2 – ICO Hospital Based Services (SRFT Acute) 2019/20
SALFORD CCG
Salford Royal ICO Pod
SLAM Data 9
Reporting Month 9

Reporting 
Month Plan 

(SLAM)

Adjusted 
Actual 

(Reporting 
Month)

Variance 
(Reporting 

Month)      
over / 

(under) 
performance

Annual Plan 
(SLAM)

Forecast 
Adjusted 

Actual

Forecast 
Variance  

over / 
(under) 

performance

% 
Performance 

to Annual 
Plan

Reporting 
Month Plan 

(SLAM)

Adjusted 
Actual 

(Reporting 
Month)

Variance 
(Reporting 

Month)      
over / 

(under) 
performance

Annual Plan 
(SLAM)

Forecast 
Adjusted 

Actual

Forecast 
Variance  

over / 
(under) 

performance

% 
Performance 

to Annual 
Plan

Reported 
Previously 

to ACC
Movement

% 
Movement

A&E 45,760 45,429 -331 60,902 60,462 -440 -1% £8,232,454 £8,286,480 £54,025 £11,082,804 £11,154,707 £71,903 1% £108,741 -£36,838 0%
Unplanned Admissions 12,375 13,015 640 16,473 17,321 848 5% £28,039,989 £29,232,000 £1,192,012 £37,318,676 £38,905,135 £1,586,459 4% £1,216,841 £369,618 1%
Excess Bed Days 4,641 7,495 2,854 6,178 9,976 3,798 61% £1,185,137 £1,089,464 -£95,672 £1,577,593 £1,450,391 -£127,202 -8% -£60,404 -£66,798 -5%
Outpatients 64,572 66,939 2,367 86,149 89,307 3,158 4% £8,564,903 £8,885,255 £320,351 £11,426,861 £11,854,523 £427,662 4% £170,558 £257,104 2%
Daycase & Elective 8,596 9,293 697 11,609 12,399 790 7% £5,153,451 £5,391,400 £237,949 £6,875,943 £7,193,424 £317,481 5% £231,062 £86,419 1%
All Other (PbR Excluded, non activity Services) 8,169 9,395 1,225 10,895 12,526 1,631 15% £13,290,300 £13,045,086 -£245,214 £17,673,101 £17,348,067 -£325,034 -2% -£79,427 -£245,607 -1%
Grand Total 144,113 151,566 7,452 192,206 201,991 9,785 5% £64,466,234 £65,929,685 £1,463,451 £85,954,978 £87,906,247 £1,951,269 2% £1,587,371 £363,898 0%

Year To Date Month 9 Forecast Year End Variance (Price)

Point of Delivery

Activity Price Movement in Forecast
Year To Date Month 9 Forecast Year End

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows the hospital based services that are within scope of the ICO and the Pooled budget, all relating to Salford Royal.  This 
table shows activity and spend by care setting (A&E department, unplanned admissions, planned admissions and outpatients).  

The main over performance is within Unplanned Admissions.  The activity has increased in this area since the last report and we have seen 
that costs are higher than plan but with activity increasing at a higher rate which indicates the complexity/acuity of patients being admitted is 
lower.  Usually during the winter months we see a reduction in planned care but as the trust have been reducing waiting lists where possible 
this activity has remained at similar levels to earlier in the year.

P
age 39



Page 10 of 13

Appendix 3 – ICO Community Services (SRFT Community) 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement in 
Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
District Nursing £6,084 £6,084 £0 £8,113 £7,982 -£131 -£131 £0
Intermediate Care £5,268 £5,268 £0 £7,024 £7,024 £0 £0 £0
MSK £1,820 £1,786 -£35 £2,427 £2,402 -£25 -£25 £0
Podiatry £1,601 £1,580 -£21 £2,135 £2,106 -£29 -£16 -£13
Other £612 £609 -£2 £815 £812 -£3 -£3 £0
Anticoagulation (Community) £689 £576 -£113 £919 £768 -£151 -£140 -£10
Adult Audiology £619 £623 £4 £825 £830 £5 £7 -£1
Palliative Care £535 £535 £0 £714 £714 £0 £0 £0
Cardiac Rehabilitation £488 £494 £6 £651 £659 £8 £8 £0
Community Neuro Rehab £480 £504 £24 £640 £672 £32 £32 -£0
Adult Diabetes £451 £476 £25 £601 £635 £33 £33 -£0
Continence £432 £415 -£17 £576 £554 -£22 -£0 -£22
Centre of Contact £353 £353 £0 £470 £470 £0 £0 £0
Physiotherapy Adults £345 £350 £5 £460 £467 £7 £9 -£2
Early Supported Discharge - Stroke £272 £272 £0 £362 £362 £0 £0 £0
Tissue Viability £262 £249 -£13 £350 £332 -£17 -£17 £0
Cardiology £209 £209 £0 £279 £279 £0 £0 £0
Community Dietetics £181 £174 -£7 £242 £233 -£9 -£9 £0
Physiotherapy - Hip & Knee £179 £116 -£63 £238 £154 -£84 -£87 £4
Dermatology £123 £122 -£2 £164 £162 -£2 -£4 £1
Osteoporosis £114 £114 £0 £152 £152 £0 £0 £0
Specialist Nursing £107 £107 £0 £143 £143 £0 £0 £0
Orthotics £102 £132 £31 £136 £177 £41 £47 -£6
Smoking Cessation £100 £100 £0 £134 £134 £0 £0 £0
Community Geriatrian £94 £94 £0 £126 £126 £0 £0 £0
Pulmonary Rehab £93 £93 £0 £124 £124 £0 £0 £0
Adult Speech & Language Therapy £91 £91 £0 £121 £122 £1 £0 £0
Respiritory Medicine £55 £55 £0 £73 £73 £0 £0 £0

Total Community Services - ICO £21,760 £21,582 -£178 £29,013 £28,667 -£346 -£297 -£50

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all of the adult community health services spend within the ICO contract, broken 
down by service.  Community services are forecasting to underspend by £0.3m in 2019/20, the main 
areas of note relate to under spends in Anticoagulation (£0.1m), District Nursing (£0.1m) and 
Physiotherapy Hip & Knee (£0.1m).

• Anticoagulation activity has reduced from last year again and this is a result of patients’ 
medication being switched.  This new medication requires fewer clinic attendances for on-
going patient monitoring.  This is offset though by an increased costs in the prescribing budget 
(which is shown in the Primary Care Commissioning Committee Report)  

Page 40



Page 11 of 13

Appendix 4 – Non-ICO Services 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement 
in Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Drug & Alcohol Contracts £2,783 £2,783 £0 £3,711 £3,696 -£15 -£15 £0
Sexual Health Contracts £1,871 £1,871 £0 £2,494 £2,444 -£50 -£50 £0
Health Improvement Service £883 £883 £0 £1,178 £1,178 £0 £0 £0
Healthy Living Centres £778 £778 £0 £1,038 £1,038 £0 £0 £0
Other - Public Health £19 £19 £0 £25 £25 £0 £0 £0

Total Public Health Contracts (Non-ICO) £6,334 £6,334 £0 £8,445 £8,380 -£65 -£65 £0

Mental Health Service - NHS £26,201 £26,200 -£1 £34,935 £34,933 -£2 £0 -£2
Six Degrees £1,128 £1,128 £0 £1,504 £1,504 £0 £0 £0
St Ann's £876 £876 £0 £1,168 £1,168 £0 £0 £0
Pendlebury House-Turning Point £649 £649 £0 £866 £866 £0 £0 £0
Community Services - NHS £612 £631 £19 £816 £848 £32 £28 £4
Prestwich Specialist Services £523 £523 £0 £697 £697 £0 £0 £0
Specialist Weight  Management £490 £462 -£28 £653 £561 -£92 -£92 £0
Age UK £407 £407 £0 £542 £542 £0 £0 £0
Community Assets £375 £375 £0 £500 £500 £0 £0 £0
START £339 £339 £0 £451 £451 £0 £0 £0
Carers' £283 £283 £0 £378 £378 £0 £0 £0
Citizens Advice Bureau £216 £216 £0 £289 £289 £0 £0 £0
Care Act £201 £201 £0 £268 £270 £2 £2 £0
Broomwell Healthwatch £146 £149 £3 £194 £205 £11 £10 £0
Stroke Association £107 £107 £0 £143 £143 £0 £0 £0
Other £243 £226 -£17 £323 £296 -£28 -£4 -£24

Total Block Contracts (Non-ICO) £32,796 £32,772 -£24 £43,727 £43,651 -£77 -£55 -£21

Acute Services - NHS £16,233 £15,708 -£526 £21,644 £20,944 -£701 -£607 -£94
Acute Services - Private £1,763 £2,557 £794 £2,351 £3,320 £969 £944 £26
Continuing Care £3,156 £3,061 -£96 £4,208 £4,171 -£38 -£105 £67
Mental Health ISRs £2,867 £2,519 -£348 £3,822 £3,453 -£369 -£426 £57
DFG Capital Grant £2,313 £2,313 £0 £3,085 £3,085 £0 £0 £0
Non Contracted Activity £1,969 £2,182 £212 £2,626 £2,912 £286 £270 £16
Funded Nursing Care £1,850 £1,855 £5 £2,467 £2,453 -£14 -£5 -£9
Community Equipment Services £1,191 £1,191 £0 £1,588 £1,488 -£100 -£100 £0
Any Qualifed Provider (AQP) £430 £477 £47 £573 £649 £76 £68 £9
Priory Beds £282 £313 £31 £376 £407 £31 £31 £0
Mental Health Services - Specialist Services £236 £316 £80 £315 £423 £108 £154 -£46
Practice Services Ltd £125 £106 -£19 £167 £151 -£16 -£23 £7
Mental Health Assessments £63 £84 £22 £83 £110 £27 £27 £0
Patient Transport £24 £28 £4 £33 £38 £5 £5 £0

Total Activity Contracts (Non-ICO) £32,504 £32,710 £206 £43,339 £43,604 £266 £234 £32

Total - Non-ICO £71,634 £71,816 £183 £95,511 £95,636 £124 £114 £10

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:
This appendix shows all of those commissioned services that are not part of the SRFT ICO contract.  
There are new contracts within this relating to the expansion of the integrated fund for 2019/20.  Most 
of these contracts are on a block with only a small number being activity based.  

These services are forecasting a slight overspend with the position improving by £0.1m from the last 
report to the committee.  This is in relation to all Acute Medical Services across all providers for Salford 
patients that receive their hospital care at other hospitals outside of Salford.  This is off set with 
increased placements for Mental Health and CHC.

Page 41



Page 12 of 13

Appendix 5 – Aligned Services 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement 
in Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Acute Services - NHS £50,251 £51,801 £1,550 £67,001 £69,068 £2,067 £1,146 £921
Acute Services - Private £7,641 £7,641 £0 £10,188 £10,185 -£3 £75 -£78
Ambulance Services £7,701 £7,701 £0 £10,268 £10,286 £18 £17 £1
NHS 111 Service £564 £562 -£2 £752 £750 -£3 -£3 -£0
Termination Of Pregnancies £471 £513 £42 £628 £688 £61 £66 -£5

Total Activity Contracts (Aligned) £66,628 £68,219 £1,591 £88,837 £90,978 £2,140 £1,301 £839

Total - Non-ICO £66,628 £68,219 £1,591 £88,837 £90,978 £2,140 £1,301 £839

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all the commissioned services that are within the Aligned element of the adult’s 
Integrated Fund.  These are services that cannot be legally included in a Section 75 Agreement 
(pooled budget) but these are included in Salford’s Integrated Commissioning Partnership Agreement.  
Predominantly these relate to surgical hospital activity and emergency ambulance services. Any over 
or underspend in these areas are included within the financial risk share of the Integrated Fund.

There has been a worsening of £0.8m in the year end forecast.  This is due to increased costs at 
NHS providers for planned care £0.8m which is the result of waiting list initiatives undertaken by all 
trusts and is reflected in reduced waiting lists for Salford patients.

Page 42



Page 13 of 13

Appendix 6 – Committed Developments 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD 

Actual
YTD 

Variance
Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement in 
Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Contingency - ASC £0 £0 £0 £783 £0 -£783 -£783 £0
Contingency - Living Wage Reserve £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
Contingency - General £0 £0 £0 £1,447 £0 -£1,447 -£1,447 £0
Contingency - LD Additional Funding £0 £0 £0 £150 £0 -£150 -£150 £0
Contingency - BCF Additional Funding £0 £0 £0 £750 £0 -£750 -£750 £0
Contingency - GM NR Complex Discharge Service £0 £0 £0 £33 £33 £0 £0 £0
Shared Care Records £0 £0 £0 £150 £0 -£150 £0 -£150
Unidentified Savings Target £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Total Committed Developments £0 £0 £0 £3,313 £33 -£3,280 -£3,130 -£150

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows funding (budget) that has not yet been transferred into contracts.  This funding 
has not been transferred across to providers yet as these budgets are based on estimated financial 
values and will only transfer into contracts when the actual financial values have been agreed.

 “Contingency ASC” relates to the improved Better Care Fund (iBCF).  All funding relating to iBCF has 
been transferred into the ICO contract with the exception of £0.8m which was held back to offset in 
year financial pressures for Adults’ integrated Fund.

This year the Integrated Fund has a non–recurrent general contingency of £1.4m and this has been 
utilised to offset the over performance of the Adults’ integrated Fund.  This funding was the additional 
ASC grant which was kept aside to offset the overspend on ASC.

Additional funding has been given to the CCG in year in relation to Better Care Fund (BCF) and 
funding for specialist LD placements that have been repatriated from NHS England (NHSE). These 
have been released to offset the ASC pressure.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                          

ADULT COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE
PART I 

AGENDA ITEM NO:   8

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)  

12 February 2020

Report of: Assistant Director of Commissioning, 
CCG

Date of Paper: 31 January 2020

Subject: Effective Use of Resources & Medicine 
Managements Update

In case of query 
Please contact:

Harry.golby@nhs.net

Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

 Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
 Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services)
 Children’s and Maternity Services
 Primary Care
 Enabling Transformation
Purpose of Paper:                                   

This is the first report of the CCG’s Effective Use of Resources and Medicine Management 
programmes to Adult Commissioning Committee.  It gives the Salford context to media 
headlines such as “Revealed: NHS plans to ration 34 everyday tests and treatments” 
(theguardian.com, 29/11/19).

Members of the Adult Commissioning Committee are asked to note the report, specifically 
the recommendations in section 4 which are designed to maintain an appropriate chain of 
Salford governance throughout the entire scope of these programmes.  

Page 45

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Harry.golby@nhs.net


 

                                                          

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

These programmes help ensure Salford 
residents have access to interventions where 
there is strong evidence of clinical and cost 
effectiveness.

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

Described in paper

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

None specific to this paper – Equality Impact 
Assessments are carried out at an individual 
policy level.

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT 
ARE THEY AND HOW DOES THIS 
PAPER REDUCE THEM?

N/A

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

None specific to this paper - Conflicts of interest 
may arise within these programmes and are 
managed in line with the CCG’s policy. 

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

None

Page 46



  

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

 Takes place within the programmes 
as appropriate – not to inform this 
specific paper.

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

 Draft of report shared with clinical and 
non-clinical members of Salford’s 
Commissioning Panel for comment.

Report amended in line with 
comments received

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 
the impacts on the Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally?



Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed) 

 Takes place within the programmes 
as appropriate – not to inform this 
specific paper.

Legal Advice Sought  Takes place within the programmes 
as appropriate – not to inform this 
specific paper.

Presented to any informal groups or committees 
(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval? 

 Draft of report shared with clinical and 
non-clinical members of Salford’s 
Commissioning Panel for comment

Report amended in line with 
comments received

.

P
age 47



Effective Use of Resources and  Medicines Management Programmes Update

1. Executive Summary

This is the first report of the CCG’s Effective Use of Resources and Medicine Management 
programmes to Adult Commissioning Committee.    It gives the Salford context to media 
headlines such as “Revealed: NHS plans to ration 34 everyday tests and treatments” 
(source.theguardian.com, 29/11/19).

The report is presented to the Adult Commissioning Committee because the financial 
consequences of the CCG’s Effective Use of Resources Programme and the (high cost 
drug elements) of the Medicines Management Programme are largely within the locality’s 
budget for adults health and care.  This report has a different focus to the Medicines 
Management reports presented to the CCG’s Governing Body and the Primary Care 
Commissioning committee as it predominantly relates to high cost drugs prescribed by 
hospital clinicians but funded directly by the CCG (i.e. excluded from hospital tariffs).  
Effective use of resources has been identified as a priority workstream within the Greater 
Manchester Elective Care Programme, because of its potential to release secondary care 
capacity, however this report has a different focus to the Scheduled Care reports received 
by the Adults Commissioning Committee. 
 
Members of the Adult Commissioning Committee are asked to note the report, specifically 
the recommendations in section 4 which are designed to maintain an appropriate chain of 
Salford governance throughout the entire scope of the programmes. 

2. Introduction

2.1. Salford CCG and City Council share long term goals of achieving better outcomes for 
local residents, reducing inequalities and enabling people to start well, live well and 
age well.  This means they need to make the best use of Salford’s health and care 
budgets.  This involves commissioning interventions where there is strong evidence 
of clinical and cost effectiveness, and conversely decommissioning other 
interventions so that resources can be used on improving outcomes elsewhere.

2.2. At times these decisions can be controversial and difficult for those involved.  
Whenever there is some doubt as to whether or not a treatment will be commissioned 
this can be stressful for patients.

2.3. There are numerous well established national agencies that provide guidance 
regarding interventions that should or should not be available through the NHS.  
Some are advisory “best practice”, others are mandatory.  For example:
 commissioners have a statutory responsibility to implement Technology 

Appraisals published by the National Institute for Health & Care Excellence 
 The Department of Health publish a “black list” of medicines that cannot be 

prescribed through an NHS prescription, 

Page 48



 The Medicines & Health Products Regulatory Agency circulate safety alerts 
which restrict the use of medicines to specific circumstances.

2.4. In 2018 NHS England published statutory guidance relating to the Evidence-based 
Interventions Programme.  This programme identified 17 surgical interventions that 
should either not be routinely commissioned or should only be commissioned when 
specific criteria are met.  This programme was launched alongside national guidance 
for over the counter medicines that should not be routinely prescribed in primary care. 
This represents a new appetite within NHS England to explicitly engage in what the 
national media commonly refers to as “rationing”.  The Guardian article appears to 
relate to the, as yet unpublished, second phase of the Evidence-based Interventions 
Programme.  The new national guidance should bring a more consistent approach to 
decisions that are taken by CCGs. 

2.5. Greater Manchester CCGs have well established shared processes to inform their 
decisions.  These are the Greater Manchester Medicines Management Group (for 
medicines) and the Greater Effective Use of Resource Steering Group (for most other 
interventions).  Having Greater Manchester arrangements provides a welcome level 
of consistency, resilience and expertise across the conurbation.

2.6. Central to the work of these groups is transparency and consultation with clinicians, 
members of the public and other stakeholders.  Detail can be accessed through
https://www.salfordccg.nhs.uk/about-us/how-we-do-things/effective-use-resources 
and  http://gmmmg.nhs.uk. 

2.7. The majority of Effective Use of Resource and Medicines Management policies 
describe under what circumstances a specific treatment is commissioned.  Some 
describe treatments that are “not routinely commissioned”, this means those 
treatments are not available on the NHS.  The NHS Constitution makes it clear that 
that no policy can be a “blanket ban” so every policy leaves open the possibility of an 
Individual Funding Request which creates the potential for a patient to be assessed 
as being an “exceptional case” that justifies a deviation from the general policy.   

2.8. Salford commissioners have to make decisions that affect Salford residents.  This 
means Salford commissioners need robust decision making processes at both policy 
and Individual Funding Request level that sit within the overarching integrated 
commissioning arrangement of the CCG and the City Council.

3. Effective Use of Resource and Medicine Management Policies

3.1. The membership of Greater Manchester Medicines Management Group (GMMMG) 
and the Greater Manchester Effective Use of Resources (EUR) Steering Group 
includes clinical representatives of each of the 10 CCGs across Greater Manchester.  
The groups are supported by teams established in 2013.  The work of GMMMG is 
supported by the Regional Drugs & Therapeutic Centre in Newcastle.

3.2. Proposals for new or amended policies are brought forward through Greater 
Manchester processes.  This involves need assessment, evidence appraisals, clinical 
and patient consultation, etc.  Mechanisms are in place to ensure Salford clinicians 
and officers are involved at these stages to influence policies as they develop.

Page 49

https://www.salfordccg.nhs.uk/about-us/how-we-do-things/effective-use-resources
http://gmmmg.nhs.uk/


3.3. At the time of writing Salford has adopted 57 Greater Manchester EUR policies 
covering a range of interventions from aesthetic breast surgery to trophic electrical 
stimulation for facial palsy.  These policies are in line with the 17 recommendations of 
the national Evidence Based Intervention programme.   See Appendix 1 for the full 
list.  The CCG monitors these policies – see Appendix 2 for high level patient 
numbers and costs, 2019/20 forecast activity is 3870 interventions, equating to CCG 
expenditure of £7.2m.

3.4. Salford has also adopted all the policy recommendations of the GMMMG.  The 
GMMMG website is a repository of a wide variety of policy and other guidance 
documents.  Identifying which ones would be specifically relevant to this paper would 
be a time consuming exercise.  To give an idea of the scale - the 2019/20 GMMMG 
Payment by Results Tariff Excluded Drugs list refers to 629 drug / indication 
combinations; CCG 2019/20 forecast expenditure on these drugs is £4.8m.

3.5. The majority of policies describe criteria that have to be met when the intervention is 
commissioned, few state an intervention is not routinely commissioned.  Most policies 
will have several criteria and they can be very detailed, some examples are:

 The % of each body region affected by psoriasis - forms part of the overall 
clinical assessment of severity of psoriasis which informs eligibility to access 
various high cost biological medicines,

 Whether the patient has had physiotherapy and whether or not that was 
successful - forms part of the eligibility to access Botox for upper limb 
dystonia and various other conditions,

 Whether there is clinically documented evidence of persistent or recurrent 
skin conditions arising as a direct result of the panniculus (e.g. intertriginous 
dermatitis, cellulitis or skin ulcerations) that is refractory to good hygiene 
practice - can form part of the eligibility criteria to access apronectomies.

 Whether the patient has had cancer, trauma or another significant clinical 
event - forms part of the eligibility criteria to access breast surgery. 

3.6. Such detailed criteria within policies create a challenge - how can commissioners be 
assured that only patients who meet the criteria receive the intervention?  

3.7. The response to this challenge is considered on a policy by policy basis.  Evidence 
suggesting significant issues (e.g. significant clinical risk associated with a treatment, 
high cost, unexplained variation or growth in access rates, etc.) would indicate higher 
levels of assurance are required.  However there is a risk that greater assurance 
brings more bureaucracy which can be difficult for clinicians and patients to navigate.  
Salford CCG seeks to find the right balance and reduce bureaucracy where 
appropriate, specific recent developments include:

 CCG reviews concerning compliance with a handful of orthopaedic EUR 
policies at Oaklands Hospital (for example knee arthroscopy and carpal tunnel 
release) led to commissioning decisions being made on an individual prior 
approval basis.  This meant clinicians had to complete forms for significant 
numbers of patients and send them for scrutiny by the Effective Use of 
Resources team prior to surgery.  It became clear that this system needed to 
change as almost every patient had their treatment approved – indicating 
good awareness of, and compliance with, the policy.  The CCG agreed to 

Page 50



work with Oaklands to implement the Blueteq system.  This system enables 
consultants at Oaklands to confirm a patient meets policy criteria during their 
appointment without the need to complete forms.  Blueteq is now in place and 
since July 2019 the number of prior approvals has dropped markedly and 
feedback from Oaklands is positive.  A fuller evaluation is planned to inform 
roll out of Blueteq to other specialties and providers.

 Blueteq is in place at Salford Royal for high cost drugs such as Adalimumab.  
Nationally more than 46,000 patients are being prescribed Adalimumab for 
severe hospital treated conditions such as rheumatoid arthritis, inflammatory 
bowel disease and psoriasis by the NHS in England. In 2017/18, Adalimumab 
cost the NHS over £400 million, it was the biological medicine on which the 
NHS spent most in our hospitals.  Standard contracting mechanisms provide 
scant information other than total expenditure.  Commissioners have now 
begun to use Blueteq to implement patient outcome monitoring frameworks 
associated with specific high cost drug pathways (see example in Appendix 
3).

 Historically a small proportion of Salford’s assisted conception provision was 
commissioned via individual prior approval as no contract was in place with 
the provider.  A recent procurement exercise means from 1 February 2020 the 
CCG will be contracting with 1 NHS and 2 private providers.    As this gives 
patients a choice of providers the CCG no longer needs to use the individual 
prior approval route for routine IVF cases.

3.8. As well as national policies the national Evidence-based Intervention programme may 
bring new focus and responses to this challenge of policy implementation.  One 
national change is the introduction of zero tariff procedures for treatments that are not 
routinely commissioned.

4. Policy Approval Process

4.1 New integrated health and care governance at both Greater Manchester and Salford 
levels have created an issue for these programmes.  It is important to find a solution 
to ensure there is an appropriate chain of Salford governance throughout these 
programmes.  Ultimately Salford commissioners have to make policy decisions that 
affect Salford residents, so it needs to be clear both how Greater Manchester 
recommendations become Salford policies and how Salford can deviate from Greater 
Manchester recommendations if this is required.

4.2 Historically Greater Manchester Effective Use of Resources and Medicine 
Management policy recommendations were presented to the Association of Greater 
Manchester CCGs for a decision that was not binding on individual CCGs.  This 
created a clear decision but it was a Greater Manchester decision, not a Salford 
decision.

4.3 The CCG agreed that it would adopt the Greater Manchester policy when the Greater 
Manchester decision was made.  This meant the CCG could be very clear what its 
policy was at any point in time.  (Timing can be very important for individual patients – 
they may be waiting for a policy to be approved before they can be treated, or their 
age may form part of a policy criteria.) 

Page 51



4.4 Effective Use of Resource and Medicine Management reports were regularly taken to 
the CCG’s Programme Management Group.  That group, which was largely made up 
of clinicians, had the opportunity to review the policies adopted, and this gave the 
CCG a mechanism to deviate from the Greater Manchester policy if required.  

4.5 This approach worked.  Programme Management Group had an opportunity to 
debate the clinical and commissioning implications of each policy.  As confidence in 
the Greater Manchester processes grew the frequency of updates reduced.   There 
was one occasion when clinicians and officers recommended the CCG deviated from 
a Greater Manchester recommendation - that was Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee’s decision in March 2019 not to apply the over the counter medicines 
policy to Salford’s minor ailment scheme.  Those localities that did not follow a similar 
approach struggled to make decisions quickly enough - on average the slowest 
locality took 82 days to adopt a Greater Manchester policy (range 50 to 149 days). 

4.6 However since April 2019:
 Salford’s Programme Management Group no longer meets.  Most of its 

responsibilities have transferred to Adult Commissioning Committee which itself 
has a busy agenda, it is unlikely to have sufficient time to receive more than one 
Effective Use of Resource and Medicines Management programme update per 
year.  Given the level of detail included within some policies it would be very 
challenging for members of the committee to consider in detail all the policies that 
have been adopted over 12 months.

 The Association of Greater Manchester CCGs no longer meets, most of its 
responsibilities have been transferred to the Greater Manchester Joint 
Commissioning Board.  It has delegated responsibility for Effective Use of 
Resources and Medicines Management policies to Greater Manchester CCG 
Directors of Commissioning or, if the financial impact of any one policy is 
expected to be more than £200k, a combination of Greater Manchester CCG 
Directors of Commissioning and Greater Manchester CCG Chief Finance 
Officers.  These meetings do not make a collective decision, they ask every 
representative to confirm their support on behalf of their individual locality.

4.7 So under the new governance, if challenged on an Effective Use of Resource or 
Medicines Management policy adopted since April 2019 Salford would be unable to 
have a clear audit trail showing when the Greater Manchester recommendation 
became a Salford policy.

4.8 Some other localities do not have this challenge because they continue to have a 
committee akin to the CCG’s Programme Management Group, sometimes called a 
Clinical Cabinet.

4.9 Officers and clinicians within the CCG have considered options to resolve this issue 
and recommend:
a) Maintaining the existing mechanisms to ensure Salford clinicians and officers 

are involved in Greater Manchester processes to influence policy 
recommendations as they are developed, 

b) Agreeing that Salford’s decisions for Effective Use of Resources and Medicines 
Managements policies are delegated to the CCG’s Director of Commissioning 

Page 52



(or jointly by the Director of Commissioning and Director of Finance where the 
financial impact is expected to be above £20k),

c) Recommending the Director of Commissioning takes clinical and non-clinical 
advice on individual policies as they judge appropriate.  This could for example 
include discussing with relevant CCG leads or establishing an informal group, 
etc.  In practice it is these leads who are most familiar with the detail of the 
process and policies so they are best placed give advice.  

d) Noting that Salford’s normal practice will be to adopt Greater Manchester 
policies when they are approved via Greater Manchester governance (e.g. 
meeting of Greater Manchester Directors of Commissioning).  However where 
the Director of Commissioning is advised to deviate from a Greater Manchester 
recommendation, they can do so and this will be reported to Adult 
Commissioning Committee for a fuller discussion.

5. Individual Funding Requests

5.1 Individual Funding Requests are made by clinicians and considered by Salford’s 
Commissioning Panel, supported by the Greater Manchester Effective Use of 
Resources Team.

5.2 The Commissioning Panel is largely made up of clinicians, its membership includes a 
representative nominated by the local director of Public Health.  In January 2019 the 
CCG commissioned training for the panel regarding the legal and ethical frameworks 
underpinning IFR decision making.

5.3 The Greater Manchester team processes cases at administrative screening and 
clinical triage prior to any consideration at full Commissioning Panel.  The team uses 
the same mechanisms to process Individual Funding Requests (i.e. exceptional 
cases that justify deviation from the policy) and Individual Prior Approvals (i.e. cases 
processed by the team to give assurance that they meet the policy).  

5.4 Between March and December 2019 the Greater Manchester team approved funding 
for two thirds of the 237 cases where a funding decision is recorded.  These cases 
related to over 60 different types of intervention. See Appendix 5 for more details

5.5 Where a review of a decision taken by the Commissioning Panel is requested by a 
patient or clinician a Process Review Panel is convened.  The Process Review panel 
is made up of members of the CCG’s Governing Body (and usually chaired by a lay 
member of the governing body).

5.6 Lay members of the CCG’s Governing Body have enquired as to the reasons behind 
an apparent reduction in the number of Process Reviews undertaken.  Since its 
establishment in 2013 there have been 7 Salford Process Review Panels convened, 
the last one was 33 months ago.  The Greater Manchester EUR team report this is a 
trend across all localities; they attribute it to a combination of factors including 
ensuring policies are more robust and correspondence with clinicians (and patients) 
is clearer to explain why panels have made the decisions they did.  Feedback loops 
throughout the whole process have also been improved – there have been numerous 
examples where Salford commissioners have provided feedback and Greater 

Page 53



Manchester recommendations and processes have been refined and improved as a 
result. 

6. Recommendations

6.1 The Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to:
 Note and comment on the report, and
 Approve the recommendations in paragraph 4.9, and
 Agree to receive annual updates of Salford’s Effective Use of Resource and 

Medicines Management programmes and note that the more frequent 
Commissioning Update can be used to draw any relevant issues to the 
committee’s attention in-year (for example deviation from a Greater Manchester 
recommendation).

Harry Golby
Assistant Director of Commissioning

Page 54



Appendix 1 – Salford’s Effective Use of Resources Policy

1. Aesthetic Breast Surgery
2. Arthroscopic sub-acromial decompression for shoulder impingement 
3. Body Contouring
4. Bunion (Hallux Valgus) Surgery 
5. Caesarean Section
6. Cataract Surgery
7. Common Benign Eyelid Lesions (Removal of)
8. Common Benign Skin Lesions
9. Complementary & Alternative Therapies
10. (Real-time) Continuous Glucose Monitoring Policy 
11. Correction of Dermatochalasis (replaced the Correction of Eyelid Ptosis policy)
12. Dupuytren’s Contracture
13. Electrolysis & Laser Hair Removal For Hirsutism
14. Endoscopic Thoracic Sympathectomy (ETS) for Facial Blushing
15. Experimental & Unproven Treatments
16. Facet Joint Injections for Back Pain
17. Functional Electronic Stimulation (FES) for Foot Drop
18. Ganglion Cyst Removal
19. Haemorrhoids and Anal Skin Tags
20. Hair Replacement Technologies for Alopecia
21. Headache Disorders
22. Hernia (Surgical repair of)
23. Hip Replacement Surgery
24. Hyaluronic Acid Injections for Osteoarthritis
25. Hyperhidrosis
26. Invasive Treatments for Snoring
27. Knee Arthroscopy
28. Knee Replacement Surgery
29. Labiaplasty
30. Laser eye surgery (for the correction of refractive errors)
31. Low Back Pain (replaced Persistent Non-Specific Low Back Pain policy)
32. Lycra Body Suits 
33. MRI Scanning (Wide Bore, Open, Open Upright)
34. Orthotics, Bespoke Orthotics and 24-hour Posture Management 
35. Other Aesthetic Surgery
36. Out of Contract Spinal Procedures
37. Pelvic Vein Embolisation in the Management of Varicose Veins
38. Pinnaplasty
39. Repair of Split / Torn Ear Lobes
40. Rhinoplasty / Septoplasty / Septo-Rhinoplasty
41. Sacroneuromodulation for Urinary Retention and Constipation
42. Skin Resurfacing Techniques
43. Squint Surgery (Surgical correction of Strabismus)
44. Surgical Correction of Trigger Finger
45. Surgical Drainage of the Middle Ear (with or without the insertion of grommets)
46. Surgical Interventions for Carpal Tunnel Syndrome
47. Surgical Procedures on the Prepuce (Circumcision)
48. Surgical Revision of Scarring

Page 55



49. Tattoo Removal
50. Tongue Tie (Surgical management of Ankyloglossia)
51. Tonsillectomy
52. Trophic Electrical Stimulation (TES) for Facial Palsy
53. Ultrasound and Pulsed Electromagnetic Systems (PES) for bone healing
54. Varicose Veins

Each Greater Manchester CCG also has an Assisted Conception Policy developed through 
shared processes these are identical except for the maximum number of cycles of IVF 
commissions – Salford commissions up to 2, other CCGs range from 1 to 3.

The following new GM EUR policies were approved for implementation by the Directors of 
Commissioning on the 10th December 2019, they have therefore been implemented for 
Salford: 

 Rhinosinusitis / Rhinitis / Sinusitis 
 Asymptomatic Gallstones
 D&C and Hysterectomy for Heavy Menstrual Bleeding

The following policies are being prepared by the Policy Team to go through the governance 
process:

 Augmentative and Alternative Communication (AAC) Aids 
 Cough Assist (Mechanical Insufflation and Exsufflation (MI-E)

Page 56



Appendix 2: High Level Effective Use of Resources Activity and Costs (note where patient 
number is lower than ten figures have been replaced with XX)

 

Forecast 
Activity 
2019/20

Forecast Cost 
2019/20 £s

Breast Augmentation 0 0
Bunion Removal Policy 62 284321
Caesarian Section XX 11487
Carpal Tunnel 159 184992
Cataract Surgery Policy 1663 1331143
Common Benign Skin Lesion of the Eyelid Policy 33 18351
Common Benign Skin Lesions Policy 247 112831
Complementary & Alternative Therapies Policy 0 0
Correction of Dermatochalasis 15 18559
Correction of Eyelid Ptosis Policy 0 0
Correction of Squint 22 30019
Drainage of the Middle Ear 86 73229
Dupuytren's Contracture Policy 60 174031
Facet Joint Injections for Back and Neck Pain 72 42686
Ganglion Cyst Removal Policy 72 91063
Haemangioma Surgery 0 0
Haemorrhoids and Anal Skin Tags 29 24405
Hip Replacement Surgery 279 1840788
Hyaluronic Acid Injections 156 80253
Hyperhidrosis Policy 38 16251
Invasive Treatments for Snoring 31 40641
Knee Arthroscopy XX 6310
Knee Replacement Surgery 331 2157806
Low Back Pain 15 9033
Mastopexy (breast lift) 0 0
MRI Scanning XX 2061
Operations on the Prepuce (Circumcision) Policy 139 129792
Persistent Non-specific Lower Back Pain 0 0
Pinnaplasty Policy XX 9922
Radiofrequency Denervation for Neck and Back Pain 0 0
Reduction mammoplasty (Female breast reduction) 0 0
Revision of breast augmentation 0 0
Rhinoplasty / Septoplasty / Septo-rhinoplasty 77 124999
Sacral Neuromodulation for Urinary Retention & Constipation Policy XX 3881
Shoulder Impingement 33 131458
Surgical Revision of Scarring Policy 15 14148
Tonsillectomy Policy 129 164693
Trigger Finger 14 16449
Varicose Veins Policy 77 78569
Total 3871 7224170

Note: This is high level data based on agreed Greater Manchester coding.  The national 
Evidence Based-Intervention Programme includes a few additional interventions and slightly 
differently coding definitions.

Page 57



Appendix 3: Example of Outcome Framework for High Cost Drug Pathway (note where 
patient number is lower than 10 actual figures have been replaced with X)

SUBGROUP MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 2019
AGENDA ITEM NO 6

Title: Dupilumab Assurance Report

Subject: Uptake of dupilumab for atopic dermatitis: updated 
paper

In case of a query please contact: Andrew Martin Andrew.martin8@nhs.net 
Claire Vaughan Claire.vaughan@nhs.net 

Declarations of Interest of Author of this 
report: 

None

Page 58

mailto:Andrew.martin8@nhs.net
mailto:Claire.vaughan@nhs.net


Summary: Following approval of this agent by NICE (TA534) in August 2018, 
the HCDSG have undertaken work to manage its entry to the GM 
health economy. A Blueteq initiation form has been developed 
with the support of GM dermatology clinicians and is now in use 
across GM. Within the form clinicians are asked to record the 
severity of the patient’s condition by recording their EASI 50 
(Eczema Area and Severity Index) and DLQI (Dermatology Life 
Quality Index) scores prior to treatment initiation, these scores will 
be reassessed at 16 weeks and if the degree of response is 
deemed inadequate treatment must be discontinued as per the 
NICE TA. A continuation form has also been made available for 
use after this 16 week review.

The last report detailed data as at 15th January 2019 and was 
presented to January’s meeting. This report provides an update 
with data extracted on 9th September. Differences from the 
previous report in brackets. Outcomes are now available for 20(5) 
patients:

 143 (55) patients have received dupilumab.
 The numbers by CCG are:

CCG Number of patients
Bolton CCG X
Bury CCG X
Heywood Middleton and Rochdale 
CCG X
Manchester CCG X
Oldham CCG X
Salford CCG X
Stockport CCG X
Tameside & Glossop CCG X
Trafford CCG X
Wigan CCG X

Grand Total 143
From Blueteq:

 69 have an approved status 
 70 require follow up
 X have pending forms i.e. the forms have been created but 

not submitted and are therefore not valid in the invoice 
matching process. 

Page 59



Summary (continued)  The average EASI score at initiation is 24.0 (24.7), 
indicating severe disease.

 The average DLQI score at initiation is 20.2 
(unchanged), indicating that their skin condition is 
having an extremely large effect on patients’ lives.

 The reduction in EASI score ranges from 52% to 100%, 
average is 77% reduction (NICE requires a 50% 
reduction to continue). X patients have an EASI 
reduction in excess of 90%, X have a reduction 
between 80 and 90% so the drug is providing very 
significant clearance in some patients

 The reductions in DLQI are 5(5)-29(20), average 15(10). 
(NICE requires a reduction of at least 4 to continue).

 As checking for dermatitis in a high-impact area is a 
manual process, this has not been performed this 
time.

 Only X individual funding requests for use of 
dupilumab has been received since the last report. 
This was for XXXXXXXXXXX and is outside the scope 
of this report.

Clinical Quality Implications: This drug provides a new and effective treatment option for 
patients who have reached the end of the currently commissioned 
Pathway. Use of the Blueteq form will aid implementation of 
positive NICE guidance and allow commissioners to have 
oversight on the use of the drug.

Is there any impact on Health 
Inequalities or vulnerable patient 
groups
including equality and diversity 
(has an equality impact been 
completed) 

There should not be any impact. Other than the requirement for 
patients to fulfil the criteria in the NICE Technology Appraisal in 
order to access treatment, no further restrictions have been 
placed on use of this drug. 

Process followed to ensure 
consistent evidence based 
decision making (include link to 
criteria used ) 

At High Cost Drugs Subgroup on 22nd August 2018 a consultant 
dermatologist (Professor Richard Warren, SRFT) was invited in 
order to discuss NICE’s terminology and reach agreement on 
initiation criteria. It was agreed that use at SRFT would be 
conditional on the use of a Blueteq form and that while no 
minimum threshold for EASI and DLQI would be set, these would 
be recorded on the Blueteq form as they have to be ascertained in 
order to assess whether NICE’s continuation criteria are met. As 
the Consultant emphasized that in some patients the disease may 
not cover a large area but may be present in a high impact area 
such as hands, feet or genitals resulting in a very significant 
impact on the patient’s quality of life (very high DLQI score), there 
would be no minimum EASI 50 score for initiation but it would be 
recorded whether the disease was present in a high impact area.

Page 60



Health Economy 
Consultation/Feedback 
Has a consultation taken place and 
what was the outcome of the 
consultation? How many CCGs 
agreed or disagreed with the 
proposal. 

Not applicable; this is implementation of a positive NICE 
Technology Appraisal which commissioners (CCGs) are obliged 
to fund.

Recommendation (from 
Subgroup) 

To note the information available on use of dupilumab so far. 
Through the use of the Blueteq system this data continues to 
assure commissioners and the provider that the drug is 
being used in line with NICE guidance.

Page 61



Commissioning/Funding  
Implications

Commissioning implications: SRFT has not requested any 
additional dermatology activity funding in order to implement this 
TA.
Financial implications: dupilumab costs £1,264.89 for 2 x 300 mg 
pre-filled syringes. The recommended dose regimen is an initial 
dose of 600 mg followed by 300 mg given every other week, with 
a review of efficacy after 16 weeks. The annual cost per patient is 
therefore around £16,450, and the cost of an initial 16 week trial is 
approximately £6,300. In the UK, it is estimated there are 14 
adults per 100,000 population with moderate AD, and 6 with 
severe AD who may be eligible for treatment with dupilumab. If it 
is assumed that 50% of the patients with severe AD are treated at 
a cost of £16,450 per year this would represent an estimated cost 
pressure of £49,300 per 100,000 population (£1.38M annually 
across GM based on a 2.8 million population). 

SRFT had initially reported that about 30 to 50 patients had been 
identified as candidates for dupilumab but that further patients 
may be identified and that this number is likely to rise to 150 
patients across GM. If 150 patients were to receive dupilumab for 
a year this would cost the GM health economy about £2.55 
million. 

Note that dupilumab was only recommended by NICE if provided 
under a simple discount patient access scheme (commercial in 
confidence) and therefore the costs presented above are an 
overestimation.

October 2019: In a recently issued communication (SSC2082), 
NHS England has stated that funding of any paediatric patient 
seen within an adult service will become a CCG responsibility. 
Thus adolescent patients between 16 and 18 years old currently 
being seen at SRFT will now be funded by CCGs, some of whom 
have already commenced treatment under an Early Access to 
Medicines (EAMS) scheme.
We have already arranged with Blueteq that the patient’s age at 
the time of completion of a Blueteq form may be obtained by us 
for the purposes of reporting.

Invoice checking continues to confirm that only the PAS 
price is recharged. 

Declarations of Interest (collated 
from Subgroup )  

AM: none
CV: none
RW: none

Page 62



Appendix 5 - Analysis of Individual Cases Processed by the Greater Manchester Effective 
Use of Resources Team in 2019/20

Total number of cases with a decision recorded by month

Month Number of Cases
April 28
May 46
June 51
July 31
August 32
September XX
October 13

The drop off in the number of 
cases processed coincides with 
the introduction of Bluteq at 
Oaklands Hospital see para 3.8

November 20
December XX
Total 237

Decisions by stage of process

Screening: Funding agreed 91 64%
Screening: Funding declined 51 36%
Screening: Total 142  
Triage: Funding agreed 40 65%
Triage: Funding declined 22 35%
Triage: Total 62  
Panel: Funding agreed 22 67%
Panel: Funding declined 11 33%
Panel: Total 33  
Total: Funding agreed 153 65%
Total: Funding declined 84 35%
Total: Total 237  

The following interventions had more than 10 Salford cases in the period:

 Knee Arthroscopy (now processed through Bluteq if at Oaklands)
 Carpal Tunnel Release (now processed through Bluteq if at Oaklands)
 Surgical Correction of Trigger Finger (now processed through Bluteq if at Oaklands)
 Female breast reduction
 Assisted conception procedures (i.e. IVF)

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 8 January 2020
	5 Adult Social Care: Managing Finance, Performance and Quality - Cath Gormally/Mark Albiston - 20 minutes
	6 Adult Commissioning Report - Karen Proctor - 15 minutes
	7 Finance Report - Steve Dixon - 15 minutes
	8 Effective Use of Resources and Medicines Management - Harry Golby - 15 minutes

